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Financial Highlights

KT““ oh
MERHE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F %
US$'million US$'million Increase
BEETRT BEXT 0
Operating Results KA
Revenue Wz 110.0 100.6 9.3
EBITDA BRF B - BB TE
N 4 58 AT ) 5.7 3.4 67.6
Operating profit LT 4.9 3.0 63.3
Profit for the year FE i F) 5.3 2.8 89.3
Financial Position B RS AR
Total assets BE®E 61.4 56.1 9.4
Cash and bank balances RNE NMIRITHES 24.3 19.8 22.7
Net assets BEFE 42.7 38.9 9.8
Financial Ratio B #S &R
Current ratio (Times) TREhEE R () 1.9 1.8 5.6
Gearing ratio (%) BREELR () - - N/A T3 A
Dividends A2
Interim dividend per share (HK cents) &R HAME GBL) 1.60 0.88 81.8
Final dividend per share (HK cents) FRCARHIR B (GBAL) 1.20 0.50 140.0
Full year dividend per share (HK cents) &2 FEME GBIL) 2.80 1.38 102.9
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Breakdown of Revenue by Nature
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Statement of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
T EFITHAHRES

(19
The climb in profitability is evidence of the

effectiveness of business strategies adopted.

B BT L B AR AR S o

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors"), | am pleased to present the annual results of Linmark Group Limited
("Company", together with its subsidiaries, the "Group” or “Linmark") for the year ended 30 April 2013.

Despite the low consumer confidence caused by the weak economic conditions, we managed to increase our shipment volume
and revenue. During the year under review, a number of obstacles to a global economic recovery persisted, including a depressed
European market where mounting debt among several countries has stalled economic progress. While the situation in the United
States ("US") has improved, growth has proceeded erratically.

Our two business segments, comprising sales of merchandise and provision of services, sustained modest growth on the strength
of our business development efforts and increasing cross-selling to key customers. The success of these development efforts is
perhaps most evident in our securing new customers, including those from emerging markets, which made greater contributions in
the second half of the year. The fact that gross profit has climbed as well is an indicator of our success on focusing high-margin
products and services.

While the Group has made solid progress, general and administrative expenses have at the same time risen, thus underscoring the
need to carefully monitor all aspects of our operation. Though the increase was partly due to the greater allocation of resources
to business development, the climb in expenses was in large measure due to inflation and currency appreciation. We will therefore
closely monitor costs and diversify our sourcing base to address different customers' needs.

We expect the global economy to remain in the doldrums in the coming financial year. Nonetheless, we are cautiously optimistic, as
our business strategy in recent years emphasising the development and launch of high-margin products and value-added services
bolster our business with long-standing clientele as well as attract new customers. Certainly, we are also continuing to explore new
business opportunities, offering popular products in heretofore untapped markets and establishing new business relationships that
broaden our client portfolios.

| ' would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation to all members of the Board for their dedication and guidance over
the past year. | wish to also thank the management team and all staff members for their hard work and commitment to the healthy

development of the Group. Furthermore, | would also like to extend my gratitude to all of our shareholders, who have continued to
place their unwavering trust in Linmark.

WANG Lu Yen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 12 July 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B am M AT

Business Review

Overview

Despite the global economy remaining fragile during the
year ended 30 April 2013, the Group recorded year-on-year
growth in shipment volume of approximately 6.7% from
approximately US$258.3 million (equivalent to HK$2,014.7
million) last year to approximately US$275.5 million (equivalent
to HK$2,148.9 million) this year. The Group's revenue also grew
by approximately 9.3% from approximately US$100.6 million
(equivalent to HK$784.7 million) last year to approximately
US$110.0 million (equivalent to HK$858.0 million) for the
reporting year. The positive performance can be directly
attributed to a series of comprehensive initiatives launched
in recent years from which the Group has been able to reap
returns.

Gross profit climbed by roughly 17.4% from approximately
US$23.5 million (equivalent to HK$183.3 million) last year to
approximately US$27.6 million (equivalent to HK$215.3 million)
this year. The rise was driven by a greater focus on higher
margin businesses.

On the cost side, general and administrative expenses for
the year ended 30 April 2013 increased by around 6.8% to
approximately US$23.5 million (equivalent to HK$183.3 million)
from approximately US$22.0 million (equivalent to HK$171.6
million) last year. The increase was caused by ongoing inflation
as well as the allocation of more resources for business
development in a bid to fuel higher growth.

For the year ended 30 April 2013, the Group achieved a profit
after tax of approximately US$5.3 million (equivalent to
HK$41.3 million), representing an increase of around 89.3%
when compared with a net profit of approximately US$2.8
million (equivalent to HK$21.8 million) recorded last year. The
profit included the Indian tax refunds of approximately US$0.8
million (equivalent to HK$6.3 million), the details of which
are set out in the paragraph under "Indian Tax Case" below.
Excluding the Indian tax refunds, the Group's profit would
have amounted to approximately US$4.5 million (equivalent
to HK$35.1 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 60.79%.

6 ‘ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2013

Segmental Analysis

Operating Segmentation

The Group's business comprises two operating segments:
(i) sales of merchandise including garments, fashion accessories,
hardgoods, consumer electronic products and labels; and
(ii) provision of services including procurement and value-
added services relating to the procurement agency business.

Shipment value

For the year ended 30 April

2013 2012

US$' million US$' million

Provision of services 182.5 172.1
Sales of merchandise 93.0 86.2
Total 275.5 258.3

During the year under review, shipment value from the
provision of services increased by approximately 6.0% to
approximately US$182.5 million (equivalent to HK$1,423.5
million), accounting for roughly 66.2% of the Group's total
shipment value. The increase in shipment was attributable to
organic growth of certain key customers.

Shipment value from sales of merchandise increased by
approximately 7.9% to approximately US$93.0 million
(equivalent to HK$725.4 million), contributing to around 33.8%
of the Group's total shipment value. The growth was mainly
contributed by new customers in North America and Europe.



¥KEE

BE

BEBE T =HNA=1TRHILEE2HRKELIBK
RTEBE ASEEZ B2 8B E A F 49258,300,000
2 7T (#8 55 742,014,700,00078 JT) 8 & 5 F %9275,500,000
7T (FH55742,148,900,0008 L) + HF 1L K 496.70% A&
B R & FE 2 Wz 7h R & F 49100,600,000% 7T (FEE R
784,700,0007% 7T ) & £ #99.390 % 45 4 #7110,000,0003 7T (47
£ 72858,000,000/8 7T ) © 2 E R RIA A B H AN F R
FrifeiT e —EREE AN EEBRKRE -

F ) /B 2= FF #923,500,0003 7T (48 % 72183,300,0007% 7T) 2
T+ #717.4%% 4 4 #727,600,0003 7T (48 = 7215,300,00078
TL) o B RTAAEEMBE TR EFNER S L EBA
wmE o

FCARTTE - — M R ITIEF X B & 9 £922,000,0003 7T (48
£ H171,600,000870) RA6BWEHE T — =F 0 A
=+ B 1k F & Z #23,500,0003 JT (8 = 7183,300,00078
L) e X B EATRBIRISE A TRELRME
WMTELZERNEBERTE -

HE-Z—=-FMOA=1+HILFE  AEEESHRFRER
| #75,300,0003< 7T (#8 25 1241,300,00078 7T ) » ¥ 2= & 45 F
#92,800,0003% 7T (FH 5 7221,800,0007% 7T ) 1 & 4989.3% ° &
FI B 45 EN[E 1R 1 49800,000E 7T (FH 146,300,000/ 7C) * B
BABEN T HERBEZR] —B& - WM TeEHNER
i ANEE B 7 5% F #9%4,500,0003 7T (4825 5435,100,00078
JC) v RFIERA160.7% ©

pak bty

BEDIE

AEBZEBSRMELENE  BEmEE (BEX
K- RHECH BE HBETERNMER)  Ri)REH
R (BREEBRBEARBRBEREXEEHZIBER
%) o

NEEHLE
BENA=tHLEE
—E-=F —E——F
BHEXTR AEETT
IR AR 182.5 172.1
EmiEE 93.0 86.2
=X 275.5 258.3

RABEFEAN @ REKRB N ESHEERL600ELD
182,500,0003= 7T (4825 531,423,500,00078 7T) * 1 AN & & 1+
EEREN0 NEERRITARETEIERRZA
EIWRAHY -

REBMEE 2B BEERL7.9%Z 493,000,000 7T
(HE552725,400,000/8 7T ) * 1 AR E B 18 2 42{E#33.80% °
I E X BhmMEEMNRENFE P TR

WEEBERAT —E-=fF% | 7



Management Discussion and Analysis
B Ewwm RoT

Geographical Segmentation

Shipment value

For the year ended 30 April

2013 2012

US$' million US$" million

North America 138.5 120.2
Europe 76.1 70.3
Others 60.9 67.8
Total 275.5 258.3

During the year under review, shipments to North America
increased by approximately 15.2% to approximately US$138.5
million (equivalent to HK$1,080.3 million). The increase in
shipments was mainly attributable to organic growth and
business from new customers. North America continued to be
the largest market of the Group, contributing approximately
50.3% of the Group's total shipment value.

Shipments to Europe increased by approximately 8.3% to
approximately US$76.1 million (equivalent to HK$593.6 million)
mainly due to the business from new customers. Shipments
to Europe presently account for approximately 27.6% of the
Group's total shipment value.

Shipments grouped under "Others", comprising mainly
shipments to the southern hemisphere, declined by
approximately 10.2% to approximately US$60.9 million
(equivalent to HK$475.0 million) due to the effect of
conservative consumer sentiment on demand. Others
represented approximately 22.1% of the Group's total shipment
value.
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Indian Tax Case

Subsequent to the date of the Company's annual report for the
year ended 30 April 2012 (2012 Annual Report”), Linmark
International (Hong Kong) Limited (“Linmark HK"), a subsidiary
of the Company received refunds from the tax authority in
India ("Tax Authority”) in respect of the penalty rescinded by
the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) in India pursuant to
an order ("CITA Order") totalling approximately INR23.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$3.5 million or US$445,000).
Together with the refund of approximately INR19.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2.8 million or US$361,000)
which has already been received by Linmark HK as previously
disclosed in the 2012 Annual Report, Linmark HK received a
total refund of approximately INR42.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$6.3 million or US$806,000).

Based on the advice from the tax adviser of Linmark HK, the
time limits for filing an appeal against the order issued by
the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal and the CITA Order in India
have lapsed and the chance of any further appeal by the Tax
Authority is remote. Accordingly, the Group recognised the said
refunds totalling approximately INR42.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$6.3 million or US$806,000) as tax credit in
the income statement. A voluntary disclosure in this regard was
made on 26 October 2012 pursuant to Rule 13.09 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules") on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange").

Hong Kong Tax Case

As of the date of this annual report, the Group received
protective assessments amounting to approximately
HK$106,000,000 (equivalent to US$13,590,000) from the Inland
Revenue Department in Hong Kong (“IRD") in respect of queries
on the modus operandi of the Group and the chargeability
of profits for the years of assessment from 2003/2004 to
2006/2007.

In response to enquiries from IRD, Tax Reserve Certificates
amounting to HK$4,400,000 (equivalent to US$564,000) have
been purchased by two subsidiaries of the Company in pursuit
of the holdover of tax demanded under protective assessments
for these years.

Taking into account the advice given by the independent
tax adviser, the Group maintains the view that sufficient tax
provision has been made in the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B Ewwm RoT

Financial Review

The Group's financial position remains healthy with cash and
cash equivalents of approximately US$24.3 million (equivalent
to HK$189.5 million) as at 30 April 2013. In addition, the Group
has total banking facilities of approximately US$20.8 million
(equivalent to HK$162.2 million) including borrowing facilities
of approximately US$0.4 million (equivalent to HK$3.1 million)
as at 30 April 2013.

The Group has a current ratio of approximately 1.9 and a
gearing ratio of zero, based on no interest-bearing borrowings
and total equity of approximately US$42.7 million (equivalent
to HK$333.1 million) as at 30 April 2013. There has not been
any material change in the Group's borrowings since 30 April
2013.

Trade receivables slightly increased from approximately US$5.4
million (equivalent to HK$42.1 million) as at 30 April 2012 to
approximately US$5.5 million (equivalent to HK$42.9 million)
as at 30 April 2013. Gross trade receivables aged over 90 days,
which amounted to approximately US$0.7 million (equivalent to
HK$5.5 million), are being carefully monitored by management.
Approximately US$0.5 million (equivalent to HK$3.9 million) of
these balances were covered by the impairment.

The Group's net asset value as at 30 April 2013 was
approximately US$42.7 million (equivalent to HK$333.1 million).

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 30 April
2013 and there has been no material change since then.

The majority of the Group's transactions during the year under
review were denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
To minimise exchange risks, sales and purchases are generally
transacted in the same currency.
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Remuneration Policy and Staff Development
Scheme

As at 30 April 2013, the Group had 422 staff (2012: 416
staff). Total staff costs for the year under review amounted to
approximately US$16.0 million (equivalent to HK$124.8 million)
(2012: US$14.4 million (equivalent to HK$112.3 million)).
The Group offers competitive remuneration schemes to its
employees based on industry practices, along with individual
and the Group's performance. In addition, share options and
discretionary bonuses are also granted to eligible staff based on
both the Group's as well as individual performance.

Creditors’ Voluntary Liquidation of Linmark
Electronics Limited ("LEL")

On 28 July 2009, LEL, a company incorporated in the United
Kingdom ("UK") and a 60% subsidiary of the Company,
filed a notice of appointment of administrators in the UK
("Administration”), pursuant to which joint administrators
("Administrators”) of LEL were appointed (“Appointment”)
pursuant to paragraph 22 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency
Act 1986 of the UK. Upon the Appointment, the legal control
of business of LEL was transferred from the directors of LEL to
the Administrators. Since then, the Company has lost control
over the financial and operating policies of LEL and therefore,
the financial results of LEL have ceased to be consolidated with
those of the Group upon the Appointment.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 27
January 2010, according to the Administrators, on 25 January
2010 (UK time), LEL moved from Administration to creditors'
voluntary liquidation ("Liquidation”) and the Administrators
were appointed the liquidators (“Liquidators”) pursuant to
paragraph 83 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 of the
UK and as approved by the creditors of LEL. It was also stated
in the said announcement that the Liquidators would adjudicate
creditors' claims following which they anticipated paying a
dividend to creditors of LEL; and further to such process, the
Liquidators would take steps to dissolve LEL.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B Ewwm RoT

In June 2012 and November 2012, the Group received a first
and final dividend, and a second and final dividend amounting
to approximately GBP44,000 and GBP3,000 (equivalent to
US$69,000 and US$5,000) respectively as one of the creditors
of LEL, and such amounts totalling approximately GBP47,000
(equivalent to US$74,000) were recorded in the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2013.
It is expected that the Liquidators would be undertaking
the required statutory and administrative steps to close the
Liquidation and to dissolve LEL.

As disclosed in the interim report of the Company for the
six months ended 31 October 2009, the unaudited total net
liabilities of LEL included in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group amounted to approximately
US$5.3 million (equivalent to HK$41.3 million). Upon the
commencement of the Liquidation, a non-cash profit of
approximately US$5.3 million (equivalent to HK$41.3 million)
was recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 30 April 2010 of the Group as a gain on liquidation
of a subsidiary. Save for the gain on liquidation of a subsidiary
and dividend income as mentioned above, the Board does not
expect the Liquidation to have any other material impact on
the Group.

Prospects

The challenges to the global business environment are expected
to persist in the coming year. The principal reason is that the
Eurozone continues to be burdened by the sovereign debt crisis
and high unemployment, leaving in its wake continued market
instability and erosion of customers' confidence across the
region. While the situation in the US has improved, growth has
proceeded erratically.

12 ‘ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2013

Although global economic growth remains sluggish,
management expects the business to increase incrementally
during the first half of the next financial year. The business
development efforts made in securing new customers will
continue to bring benefits to the Group in the near future.
In fact, the climb in profitability in the past year is evidence
of the effectiveness of business strategies adopted. To
bolster the Group's competitiveness, Linmark will continue to
offer a greater variety of products and provide more value-
added services. At the same time, the Group is strengthening
partnerships with existing customers, promoting cross-selling
and exploring new business opportunities.

Rising inflation and currency appreciation are expected to
contribute to increasing costs in countries where the Group
operates, particularly in the People's Republic of China (“PRC").
To alleviate their impact, management will continue to closely
monitor and implement effective cost control measures to
better manage operating expenses. In addition, the Group
will further diversify its sourcing base to address different
customers' needs.

While economic, market and cost challenges remain,
management is cautiously optimistic about the financial
performance of the Group in the coming year based on its
sound business fundamentals.
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Biographical Details of Directors,

Senior Management and Company Secretary
55 aREEELRARMEEH

WANG Lu Yen
1B

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis
HEF

Executive directors and senior
management

Mr. WANG Lu Yen, aged 59, is an executive director and the
chairman of the Company and became the chief executive
officer of the Company with effect from 8 October 2010. He
is mainly responsible for the Group's corporate and strategy
planning and business development. Mr. Wang joined the
Group in 1998 as chairman. He is a co-founder, an executive
director and chairman of Roly International Holdings Ltd.
("Roly International”), an intermediate holding company of
the Company which was listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited from 1996 to 2007.

Mr. Wang has over 30 years of experience in the trading and
distribution business. Mr. Wang is a vice-chairman of China
Association for Middle and Small Commercial Enterprises,
a member of the China Overseas Friendship Association, a
member of Shanghai Chinese Overseas Friendship Association,
a member of Hong Kong Association for the Promotion of
Peaceful Reunification of China, a honorary court member
of The Hong Kong Baptist University, a member of Hong
Kong/Taiwan Business Cooperation Committee, the honorary
chairman of Taiwan Business Association (Hong Kong) Limited,
a director of the Soochow Management Academic Foundation
of Soochow University and a director of the Taiwan Design
Center. Mr. Wang was awarded the Directors of The Year
Awards 2005 hosted by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration
from Soochow University, Taiwan and an EMBA degree from
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University, PRC.

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, aged 43, was appointed as
an executive director of the Company with effect from 1
September 2010. Mr. Wong has been the chief financial officer
of the Group since 2006 and oversees the finance, legal,
shipping, IT and HR functions of the Group. Prior to that, Mr.
Wong was the head of corporate development department of
Roly International, an intermediate holding company of the
Company, primarily responsible for Roly International and the
Group's corporate development, mergers and acquisitions and
investor relations activities. Before joining Roly International
in 2000, Mr. Wong had worked at several major international
financial institutions where he gained extensive experience in
finance, investments and banking. Mr. Wong holds a Master
of Business Administration degree in finance from Boston
University in the US, and a Bachelor of Science degree from
The University of British Columbia in Canada.
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WONG Wai Ming
e

WANG Arthur Minshiang
TauE

Non-executive director

Mr. WONG Wai Ming, aged 55, is a non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Wong has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since it was listed in 2002
and was redesignated as an executive director of the Company
in 2005 and then further redesignated as a non-executive
director of the Company in 2007. Mr. Wong has been the chief
financial officer and senior vice president of Lenovo Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, since July 2007. He is also an independent non-
executive director of China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited,
which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Wong was an independent non-executive director of I.T Limited
from 2004 to 2011, which is also listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was an executive director and
chief executive officer of Roly International from 2005 to
2007. He was previously an investment banker with over 16
years of experience in investment banking business in Greater
China. Mr. Wong is a chartered accountant of the UK and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). He holds a Bachelor's degree
of Science (with Honours) in Management Sciences from The
Victoria University of Manchester, the UK.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, aged 52, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
2002. Mr. Wang is the chief executive officer of 698 Capital
Limited, a private Asian investment firm. Mr. Wang is also a
board and audit committee member of NASDAQ listed Home
Inns & Hotels Management Inc., one of China's leading hotel
chains. Previously, Mr. Wang was a member of the board and
chief executive officer of GigaMedia Limited, a NASDAQ listed
online entertainment and game provider. Mr. Wang was also
previously a co-founder and executive director of KGI Asia
Limited, the investment banking arm of the Koos Group of
Taiwan. Mr. Wang has also served on the board of directors of
several finance and technology companies in the region and
was previously a member of the board and audit committee
chair of Softbank Investment International (Strategic) Limited
(now known as China Renji Medical Group Limited), the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Wang received his Juris Doctorate degree from Yale Law
School and practised corporate and securities law in Hong
Kong and New York. He also holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of California at Los Angeles in the US.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary
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TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

HELT

Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS

Independent non-executive directors

(continued)

Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius, aged 65, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 2005. Mr. Tse is
a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, and the HKICPA. Mr. Tse is a past president and
the past chairman and a past member of the Audit Committee
of the HKICPA. He joined KPMG in 1976, became a partner in
1984 and retired in March 2003. Mr. Tse was a non-executive
chairman of KPMG's operations in the PRC and a member of
the KPMG China advisory board from 1997 to 2000. Mr. Tse is
currently an independent non-executive director of Wing Hang
Bank, Limited, CNOOC Limited, China Telecom Corporation
Limited, Sinofert Holdings Limited and SJM Holdings Limited,
all listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tse was
an independent non-executive director of China Construction
Bank Corporation, which shares are also listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from 2004 to 2010. Mr. Tse was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of CCB
International (Holdings) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
China Construction Bank Corporation in March 2013. Mr. Tse is
a member of the International Advisory Council of the People's
Municipal Government of Wuhan. Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor of
Social Sciences degree from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, aged 66, has been
an independent non-executive director of the Company since
2008. He became the chief executive officer of Freemans
Grattan Holdings of Otto Group in 2008. After a successful
4 vyears, he retired at the end of 2012 and remains a non-
executive director of Freemans PLC and Grattan PLC. From
1994 to 2007, he was managing director of Otto International
Asia and was responsible for all of its sourcing offices and
trading companies in the Asia Pacific region. Prior to that,
he worked his way through different aspects of the garment
industry for 22 years in South Africa. Having been managing
director for the manufacturing subsidiary of a major retailer in
South Africa and a board member of such retailer for 4 years,
he joined a large American apparel manufacturer in Hong Kong
in 1992. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Garment Engineering
received from a college in Netherlands.

Company secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda, aged 45, is the company
secretary of the Company and Roly International. Ms.
Cheung joined a subsidiary of Roly International in 1997 as
an assistant company secretary. She has over 20 years of
company secretarial experience gained in listed companies. Ms.
Cheung holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and is
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, the UK.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has adopted the Code Provisions ("Code Provisions") as
stated in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report ("CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on
the Stock Exchange as the Corporate Governance Code (“Code") of the
Company. The Board is committed to complying with the Code to the
extent that the Directors consider it is applicable to the Company and
practical.

The corporate governance principles of the Group emphasise an effective
Board, sound internal controls, appropriate independence policy, and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company fully complied with the Code
Provisions in the CG Code, save for the deviation from Code Provision
A.2.1.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
and the explanations on the deviation from the Code Provisions are
summarised as follows:

The Board

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company's business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All Directors
should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise
its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly
management accounts and updates to the Directors who also have full
and timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

Pursuant to the terms of reference and modus operandi of the Board, the
powers and authorities reserved to the full Board include the following
but are not limited to:

1. matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder and/or a Director:

2. making decisions on whether or not to declare, recommend or pay
dividend;

3. approving (i) the publication of preliminary announcement of the
profits or losses in respect of annual results or interim results and
(i) the related financial statements and/or accounts;
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4. approving any proposed change in the capital structure, including
any redemption of its securities listed on the Stock Exchange;

5. approving any decision to change the general nature of the
business of the Company;

6. approving any discloseable transaction, major transaction, very
substantial acquisition and disposal or connected transaction
within the meaning of Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules;

7. matters specifically set out in the Listing Rules which require
approval at a full Board meeting; and

8. any regulations or resolutions or restrictions that may be imposed
upon the committees by the Board from time to time.

The authorities reserved to the Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee are more particularly discussed
below.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive officer and
senior management to discharge its responsibilities. Save for the
power reserved by the Board or other Board committees, the Executive
Committee currently comprising the chief executive officer and chief
financial officer is responsible for the day-to-day management and
operation functions of the Group.

Corporate governance functions

Pursuant to the terms of reference and modus operandi of the Board,
the Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out below or it may delegate the responsibility to a committee
or committees:

1. to develop and review the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
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5. to review the Group's compliance with the corporate governance
code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company; and

6. to review and monitor the Group's process of disclosure, including
assessing and verifying the accuracy and materiality of price-
sensitive information and determine the form and content of any
required disclosure.

During the year under review, as part of the efforts of putting in place
appropriate internal control and reporting systems to ensure timely
compliance of the new inside information provisions under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance ("SFQ") and related amendments to the Listing
Rules, the Board adopted its internal policy on disclosure of inside
information and continuous disclosure policy and materiality guidelines.

Directors’ and officers' liabilities insurance

Appropriate insurance cover for directors' and officers' liabilities
in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the
Group has been arranged by the Company.

Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises six Directors in total, with two executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. The Directors during the year under review and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
WANG Lu Yen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
WONG Wai Ming

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS
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ARRRHRENEEEERES - TRIEHEE
SeNEEELR BT AIETMERA -

The Company currently has four Board committees. The table below
provides membership information of these committees on which each
Board member serves.

Board Committee

EEXZEE Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination

Director Committee Committee Committee Committee
S HITZEE BERZEEE e P b REZEE
WANG Lu Yen THE M C
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEF M
WONG Wai Ming YL
WANG Arthur Minshiang THF M
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HEDT M
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS M

Notes: BEE -

C Chairman of the relevant Board committees C EHREEZEENER

M Member of the relevant Board committees M FHREEZEENNE

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)) with
each other.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such
confirmation, the Company still considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgment to the
Board. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Independent non-executive Director who has served for
more than nine years

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang has served as an independent non-executive
Director for more than nine years. To comply with Code Provision A.4.3
of the CG Code, Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang retired voluntarily and
was re-elected as Director at the 2012 annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 August 2012.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The Board is responsible for approving any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy based on the
recommendations of the Nomination Committee.

The Company's bye-laws (“Bye-laws") provide that all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any
new Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall be
subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

The Bye-laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Company's circular to be despatched to shareholders of the
Company on or about 26 July 2013 will contain detailed information of
the Directors standing for re-election.

Directors' service agreements and letters of appointment
Each of Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, being an
executive Director, has entered into a service agreement with the
Company with an initial term of three years from May 2002 and
September 2010 respectively, and has continued or will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party by not less than six months'
notice in writing.

Mr. WONG Wai Ming, a non-executive Director, has been appointed for
a term of two years under a letter of appointment from 5 July 2007 and
has continued thereafter until terminated by either party by serving at
least one month's notice in writing.

EEBRNFNBIFATES

FHHELECEEBLIENTESANT - BF
GEERTRINTAME X EA4IMG - THFFT
AR E——FENA T HEETHNARRZ
T-_FRFAFTFAS FERERE TESES
B

EESNEE BEEAIRER
EE2RAREREZEENERLEESEN
EREHER - LA AR BB ERRE -

ARAWARMAR ([ARAA]) RE - 28
ERARIEB=FRFEEE—R  hREMRE
ERMBEFSZENERMRESHEREZERE
BABRRAE LHBRREE -

RAARITIAEFA - B BRBERERES -

EEeEIANARAEERRBFAGLENE
TEEETHES -

ARFBR-B—=FL AT AARK AN
FRTFARARROBLHEREEWEREEE
FORE -

ESNEBRZHBERZIER
WTEFIGARERREFEENRIEART]
R — IR WmE - DB -—TE_FRAKRC
T-TFENAR  BREHR=F  HERBH
BORBLIBEBLEREEEMN - UAEEERX
BEHADRANERRBAEIEERRERL -

FRTEEZHRALERBEZERERIE /A
“ETHFLATRE  REWMFE HE—H#
BEEEA-—TUNEAVRBLEL—EAZE
MEILEBBRERL -

WEEBERAT —T-=FF% | 21



Corporate Governance Report
NRIEAMRE

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
WANG Arthur Minshiang, Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius and Mr. Jakob
Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, has first been appointed for a term of two
years under a letter of appointment. Such term has been renewed for a
further two years upon expiry. The appointments may be terminated by
the independent non-executive Directors by serving not less than one
month's notice in writing.

Disclosure of information on Directors

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual
report, except for the other directorships and major appointments and
emoluments as disclosed in other parts of this annual report, there is
no change in information of the Directors since the date of the annual
report for the year ended 30 April 2012 of the Company which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Changes to the emoluments of the Directors

For the year under review, the Remuneration Committee having
considered the roles and responsibilities, performance and contributions
of the Directors approved certain changes to the emoluments of the
executive Directors. None of the Directors participated in the discussions
relating to his own remuneration matters.

The changes made to the emoluments of the Directors are summarised
below:

1. WANG Lu Yen (executive Director, chairman, chief executive
officer, chairman of Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee, and member of Remuneration Committee)

- The Remuneration Committee has approved a discretionary
bonus payment of US$455,000 for the year under review.

2. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (executive Director, chief financial
officer, and member of Executive Committee)

- With effect from 1 May 2013, the base salary under the
service agreement has been adjusted from HK$3,240,000 (or
US$416,452) to HK$3,402,000 (or US$437,275) per annum.

- The Remuneration Committee has approved a discretionary
bonus payment of US$228,000 for the year under review.
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Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to Directors at the Company's expenses
whenever necessary.

The Company provides reqular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group's business and the legislative
and regulatory environments in which the Group conducts its business
to the Directors.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5
of the CG Code on Directors' training. All Directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and provided a record of training they received
during the year ended 30 April 2013 to the Company. Each Director
received at least eight hours of training in the form of attending
seminars, receiving online training or self-study of the publications
issued by the regulators, professional bodies and corporate lawyers
during the year ended 30 April 2013.

Directors' attendance and time commitment

Regular Board meetings are held four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals primarily for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies, policies and budgets of the Group.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, the Board met four times mainly
for considering and approving the audited final results for the year
ended 30 April 2012, unaudited results for the three months ended 31
July 2012, unaudited interim results for the six months ended 31 October
2012, unaudited results for the nine months ended 31 January 2013,
budget of the Group for the year ending 30 April 2014, a continuing
connected transaction, the policies and guidelines on disclosure of inside
information, renewal of the term of the letter of appointment of an
independent non-executive Director and changes of Bermuda officers. At
these board meetings, the Board also reviewed and discussed the Group's
business updates and strategies.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the

BEENEE_Z —EEEH :‘T’ElJtEJFE’]%

Board, Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee Fe  HWITLED - BERTES®  FMZESR
and Nomination Committee and annual general meeting during the year IREZZE@@HZLRRAFASZEAALFEXE
ended 30 April 2013 is set out below: ST
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HER/ EERY
Executive Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual
Board Committee ~ Committee Committee  Committee general
Name of Directors BB Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting meeting
EXE® HTZEE ERZEE HHZEE REEEE RREF
g3 =F ] =F ] -F ] -F ] PN -
Executive Directors YTES
WANG Lu Yen THE 44 202 2 0/ 11 11
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEE 4[4 202 2 NJA 1 ik
Non-executive Director FYTES
WONG Wai Ming HEH 4  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER oNn
Independent non-executive Directors B FHTES
WANG Arthur Minshiang TaH ot NATER 202 0/0 11 0/1
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius #HELT 44 NATER 22 0/0 11 11
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS 44 NATER 22 NAMER  NATER 01
Number of meetings held SHRMBTRH 4 2 2 0 1 1
Note: BEE -
* The Directors are not members of the committees at the relevant time but attended * HEERNERIIZEZESNE  BEBLEERS

the meetings by invitation.

In place of physical meetings, the Board and Board committees also
circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of
the Board and Board committees except for matters where a substantial
shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest which the Board has
determined to be material in compliance with Code Provision A.1.7.

The Board having considered the attendance records and training
records of the Directors and the confirmation provided by each Director
is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient time performing his
responsibilities.
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Practices and conduct of meetings
Meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are made available
to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are generally sent to all Directors at least three days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
and company secretary whenever necessary.

The chief executive officer, chief financial officer (who heads a team
of professional staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function) and company secretary of the Company attend all
regular Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft and final versions
of minutes of Board meetings are normally sent to Directors for their
comments and records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable
time after each meeting is held.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Mr. WANG Lu Yen, the chairman of the Company, is also the chief
executive officer of the Company. Such practice deviates from Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

In view of Mr. WANG Lu Yen's extensive experience in the industry and
in-depth knowledge of the Group's operation and business, the Board
believes that Mr. Wang is instrumental in formulating and implementing
the Group's strategies. The Board expects that the Group will benefit
from a unified chairman and chief executive officer position that
provides clarity of leadership and allows efficient decision-making in
strategic matters as well as the Group's day-to-day business. However,
as the corporate needs of the Group may change from time to time,
the Board will review regularly the board composition and division of
responsibilities to ensure balance of power and corporate governance
practices appropriate for the size and structure of the Group's business.

The responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer are
clearly defined and set out in writing, details of which are stated below.

The chairman's principal role is to provide leadership for the Board on
corporate and strategic planning, ensure proper proceedings of the
Board and encourage all Directors to have active contributions to the
Board's affairs.

Supported by the other executive Director and management, the chief
executive officer's principal role is to manage and operate the Group's
day-to-day business, including the implementation of major strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board.

Board committees

The Company currently have four committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.

Terms of reference of all Board committees are available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website at www.linmark.com.
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Current structure of the Board

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
expenses.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of all the executive Directors as
follows:

WANG Lu Yen (chairman of the committee)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and operation
functions of the Group to the Executive Committee save to the extent
that certain powers and authorities are reserved to the full Board or the
other Board committees. The Executive Committee is also responsible for
reviewing or recommending to the Board the investment transactions
of the Group and has the power to approve transactions that would not
constitute notifiable transactions or capital market activities.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive Directors
as follows:

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (chairman of the committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS
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None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company's existing external auditors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
annual reports and accounts, interim reports and results announcements
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Directors. The
members meet regularly with the external auditors and the Company's
senior management for the review and supervision of the Company's
financial reporting and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee
is also responsible for monitoring integrity of the financial statements
of the Company and the Company's annual reports and accounts and
interim reports, and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them.

As required by Code Provision C.3.7 of the CG Code, details of
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control and other matters have been
included in the employees' handbook since 1 April 2012.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings
to:

(a) review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the chief financial officer
(who heads a team of professional staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function) or external auditors
before submission to the Board;

(b)  review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees, terms of
engagement and independence, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors proposed by management; and

(c) review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions of the
Company which took place during the year under review.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 30 April 2013 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from the external
auditors on its independence and objectivity as required by the HKICPA.
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There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection and appointment of the external auditors during the
year under review.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, the majority of
which are independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

WANG Arthur Minshiang (chairman of the committee)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
WANG Lu Yen

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the Company's policy
and structure for all the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee shall consult
the chairman and/or the chief executive officer of the Company about
their recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.

The Company adopted Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) out of the two
models suggested by the CG Code. As a result, the Board as a whole is
responsible for determining the remuneration of non-executive Directors
whereas the Remuneration Committee has the authority to approve
the remuneration of the individual executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company and its subsidiaries as well as share
options related matters.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee did not
hold any meeting. After the year ended 30 April 2013, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to determine the remuneration and bonus
of the executive Directors.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises three members, the majority of
which are independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

WANG Lu Yen (chairman of the committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(a) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy;

(b)  identify individual suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship;

(c)  assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors,
having regard to the requirements of the Listing Rules;

(d)  ensure that no independent non-executive Director or any of his/
her associates is involved in assessing his/her own independence;
and

(e)  make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particulars the chairman and the chief executive.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, to
review the independence of independent non-executive Directors, to
consider the renewal of the letter of appointment of an independent
non-executive Director, to review the dual role held by the chairman
and chief executive officer and to note the new Code Provision and
amendments to the Listing Rules relating to board diversity.

Company secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda has been the company secretary since the
Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2002.
She is an employee of a fellow subsidiary of the Company and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs.

As the company secretary, Ms. Cheung supports the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that Board policy and
procedures are followed. She is responsible for advising the Board
through the chairman and chief executive officer on governance matters
and facilitates induction and professional development of the Directors.

The appointment and dismissal of the company secretary are subject to
the Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. Whilst the company
secretary reports to the chairman and the chief executive officer on
the Group's company secretarial and corporate governance matters, all
members of the Board have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary.
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Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company secretary must
take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year staggered according to the date of appointment. In view
of her date of appointment, Ms. Cheung being the company secretary
of the Company is required to take such professional training for the
financial year commencing on 1 May 2013.

Business objectives and strategies

Through harnessing the expertise and creativity of all our people, the
Company's objectives are to preserve and grow its position as a key
player in global supply chain management, while constantly striving to
increase the returns of the Company's shareholders.

The Company is committed to providing its customers the right quality
products and cost effective services in apparel and hardgoods at the
right time.

The Company looks for improving the Group's long term financial
performance and avoids taking undue risks to make short term gains
at the expense of long term objectives. The current business strategy is
disclosed in the section "Prospects” of the Management Discussion and
Analysis of this annual report.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining the system of internal controls
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. During the year ended
30 April 2013, the Board conducted an annual review of the Group's
internal control system, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. The Board assessed the
effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews performed by
the Audit Committee and external auditors. The annual review also
considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff in respect of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function.

As delegated by the Board and Audit Committee, executive management
reviewed the design and implementation of systems of internal controls
based on annual assessment of the Group's risk profile. Key control
issues and recommendations were reviewed by the Audit Committee.
Management will continue to follow up actions agreed upon in response
to recommendations.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers ("“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 30 April 2013.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code ("Employees Written Guidelines") for
securities transactions by relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the Company
and its securities.

No incident of non-compliance with the Employees Written Guidelines
by the relevant employees was noted by the Company.

Responsibilities in respect of the financial

statements

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other publications and disclosures
of the Company required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2013.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditors' Report" contained in this annual report.

Auditors' remuneration

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 30
April 2013 amounted to approximately US$289,000 and US$52,000
respectively. The non-audit services were mainly related to tax services.

Shareholders' rights
The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of the
members (or shareholders) of the Company (“shareholders") are set out
in, amongst other things, the Bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (“Companies Act").
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Convening special general meeting on requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company or
at the registered office of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies
Act. Under bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provision of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called
can be sent to the head office and principal place of business of the
Company as set out in the Corporate Information section of this annual
report for the attention of the company secretary.

Proposing resolution at general meeting

Shareholders may by written requisition request for including a
resolution relating to matters in a general meeting by following the
requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act.

Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections of the
Companies Act, on the written requisition of members representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights or 100 members, at the
expense of the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves,
the Company shall give shareholders of the Company notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting and a relevant statement.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

Under bye-law 86(1) of the Bye-laws, shareholders are entitled to elect
any person to be a Director at the annual general meeting in accordance
with bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws or at any special general meeting by
following the requirement set out in bye-law 88 of the Bye-laws. Details
of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are available
on the Company's website at www.linmark.com.
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Notice of general meetings and "bundling” resolutions

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.3, the Company will arrange for the
notice to shareholders to be sent for annual general meetings at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days for all other general meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors. Where
bundling the resolutions cannot be avoided, the Company shall explain
the reasons and material implications in the notice of the meeting.

Voting by poll
The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all resolutions put
to vote at general meetings of the Company are taken by way of poll
except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands.

Details of the poll voting procedures will be set out in the circular sent
to shareholders prior to each meeting. The chairman of a meeting shall
ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll and answer any questions from shareholders on voting
by poll.

After each general meeting, the poll results will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in the manner
prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders' communication policy

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
in particular, use annual general meetings or other general meetings
to communicate with them and encourage their participation. The
Company shall also make available all the disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board will regularly review this policy to ensure its effectiveness to
suit the needs of the Company and to comply with the relevant rules
and corporate governance code.

34 ‘ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2013

REAEEER [HWH ) RFER
RIBSTAMRRE 13 ARRBRERBFX
SARMEL R20ELEBARREXGHAES
ERARMERAGAFINED R10EZ%A
ARREXEHAS °

SEEAEE (BERBEAES) BRREA
€ FINBTABRES - WEGRRRT AR
% AARERERBETRERAREES
e

REX A
BERBRRARE 2B RERKUIEEFARA
ZRBRZIEFHNATAME -

BIE FTiHAIE13.3904)(E  BEARAAFREARD
ERRZITAERERANEZFNET - EXS
FREFRTERDFURF AT RLEEEF T
SRATIRRTBAERE 2 IRE BRI

RIEFZHBHENERGRARMAMEX
RIEITHRSR
RZAE

e PN
TRRZBEHA - K& EFEAMR
AR REESBLEERRERRRE
fa e

BRABRRRER RESERBUALTRANE
13.39(5) IR PT AR FE 2 77 SR Bt 52 it e AN 2 )4t 1)

% o
g

B Rz B BOR
ERGARRRRITYE - RANABRAFA
FAHMRRAGARSEBRTHMBELHE -
ARBINERRZ TR 2 B REER R
7 E)B AR R E 2 R U B R B A2 P R AR B 4
B o

EEEeREMRTEERER  UWRREBZMmE
AR BHRMETHERERR R EEERTE -



Conduct of general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable
to attend the meetings.

The chairman of the Board as well as chairman of the Board committees
or in their absence, other members of the respective committees and the
external auditors are available to answer questions at the annual general
meetings.

Shareholders' enquiries

Shareholders can send their enquiries about shareholdings, share
transfer, registration and payment of dividend to the Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office. Other shareholders' enquiries can
be directed to the head office and principal place of business of the
Company as set out in the Corporate Information section of this annual
report for the attention of the chief financial officer and the company
secretary.

Details of the shareholders' rights and communication policy are also
available on the Company's website at www.linmark.com.

Investor relations

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors to keep them abreast of the
Company's developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.

Besides, as to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.linmark.com, where information and updates
on the Company's business developments and operations, list of directors
and their role and function, constitutional documents, terms of reference
of the Board and its committees, procedures of nomination of directors
for election, shareholders' rights and communication policy, corporate
governance practices, announcements, circulars and reports released to
the Stock Exchange and other information are posted. Information on
the Company's website will be updated from time to time.

There was no change in the Company's constitutional documents during
the year ended 30 April 2013.

Hong Kong, 12 July 2013
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 April 2013.

Principal activities
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year under review by
business and geographical segments as well as information about major
customers is set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2013 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 55.

An interim dividend of 1.60 HK cents per ordinary share, totalling
approximately US$1,405,000, was declared and paid to shareholders
during the year under review.

A distribution ("Distribution”) of 14.64 HK cents per ordinary share,
totalling approximately US$12,863,000, was approved by shareholders
at the special general meeting held on 13 June 2013 and paid to
shareholders on 28 June 2013.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 1.20 HK
cents per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 30 April 2013,
totalling approximately US$1,054,000. Subject to shareholders' approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the final dividend will be
paid in cash on or about 9 September 2013 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 3 September
2013.

Ultimate holding company

During the year under review, the Directors regard Roly International
as a controlling shareholder of the Company and Megastar Holdings
Limited ("Megastar") as the ultimate holding company of the Company.
The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. WANG Lu Yen, an
executive Director.

As at 30 April 2013, Roly International, directly and indirectly, held
approximately 69.84% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during the year under review are set out in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

Share capital
Details of the share capital of the Company during the year under review
are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

Reserves and distributable reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year under review are set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

As at 30 April 2013, distributable reserves of the Company consisted of
the aggregate of contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
US$14,223,000 (2012: US$15,541,000).

Bye-law 138 of the Bye-laws requires that no dividend shall be paid
or distribution be made out of contributed surplus if to do so would
render the Company unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or
the realisable value of its assets would thereby become less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

In accordance with Section 54 of the Companies Act, the Company
shall not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of its
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

() the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company's assets would thereby be less
than its liabilities.

With effect from 14 June 2013, the amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company was reduced by US$12,800,000.
The credit arising from the share premium reduction was transferred to
the contributed surplus account of the Company. Such credit transferred
to the contributed surplus account of the Company was then applied to
pay the Distribution.
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Share options and share option schemes

A share option scheme ("2002 Share Option Scheme") was adopted
by the Company pursuant to a resolution of the then sole shareholder
passed on 22 April 2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives
or rewards to eligible persons for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group. The Company terminated the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and adopted a new share option scheme (“2011 Share
Option Scheme") pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company on 29 August 2011. The 2011
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to
2021, during which the Board or a committee thereof may grant options
to eligible persons to subscribe for shares in the Company. No option
has been granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme. The outstanding
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme remain exercisable
according to the terms of the grants of the options.

Details of the 2011 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. Eligible persons
The eligible persons under the 2011 Share Option Scheme include:

(i) any Director or proposed Director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
Director), employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of, or any individual for the time being
seconded to work for, any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the Company or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder of the Company; or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder of the
Company; or

(iii)  any business partner, agent, consultant or representative of,
or any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to, or any supplier of goods or
services to, or any customer of, any member of the Group or
any controlling shareholder of the Company or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder of the Company.

2. Maximum number of shares
The initial total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date
of approval of the 2011 Share Option Scheme (i.e. 68,306,927
shares, representing approximately 10% of the Company's issued
share capital as at the date of this annual report).
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Share options and share option schemes (continued) BRERERETS ()
2. Maximum number of shares (continued) 2. ROEHE LR @
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share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
of the Company's shares in issue from time to time. Options
granted to the independent non-executive Directors or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates
in excess of 0.1% of the Company's shares in issue and with an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million resulting in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
already granted and to be granted to such person under the 2011
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant
of such option must be approved in advance by the Company's
shareholders.
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3.  Maximum entitlement for each eligible person 3.
The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to any eligible persons (including those cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any 12-month period up to the date of
the latest grant shall not exceed 1% of the Company's shares in
issue. Any further grant of options in excess of such limit must e LEREESZ LR BRE - A
be separately approved by the Company's shareholders in general SITERERRRRABRRARE £ 2 E7
meeting. o o
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4. Acceptance and payment on acceptance 4.
Offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. No
consideration is required to be paid by the grantee of an option
to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option. Options may be exercised at any time commencing on the
date as the Board may determine and ending on such date as the
Board may determine but shall not exceed 10 years from the date
of grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the
grant of the option is accepted). The exercise price is determined
by the Board, and will not be less than the higher of the closing
price of the Company's shares on the date of offer of grant and
the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant.

5. Remaining life of the 2011 Share Option Scheme

Subject to the earlier termination of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme in accordance with the rules governing the 2011 Share
Option Scheme, the 2011 Share Option Scheme will expire on 29

August 2021.
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Share options and share option schemes (continued) BRERBRESS @

Movements of the options to subscribe for shares of the Company  RABBEEANRBE_ZTT - FHERETEIRT
granted to the Directors and employees (Note ii) under the 2002 Share  EENES (ML) AIREB AR ARG 2 BRE
Option Scheme during the year under review were as follows: ZHERMNT

Options granted by the Company
Number of underlying shares of the Company

FAFREBRERB 2 A LTRNYE

Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
as at as at price
1 May 2012 Granted Cancelled Lapsed 30 April 2013 per share Date of grant Exercise period
(HKS)
R=B-2f% RZ%-ZF
iA-A mA=+H ) )
BT BRH Bt BAM HATE  BROEE RAEH TRER
(&)
\/BTC)
Directors Bz
WANG Lu Yen TiE 500,000 - - - 500,000 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEE 3,282,500 - - - 3,282,500 0830 24/08/2007 24/08/2008-23/08/2013
500,000 - - - 500,000 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
3,782,500 - - - 3,782,500
WONG Wai Ming HEH 500,000 - - - 500,000 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
WANG Arthur Minshiang TH#E 312,500 - - - 312,500 0700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius EIED 625,000 - - - 625,000 0830 2410812007 24/08/2008-23/08/2013
Jakob Jacobus Koert Jakob Jacobus Koert 312,500 - - - 312,500 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
TULLENERS TULLENERS
Continuous contract employees B EALEE 9,759,000 - - - 9,759,000 0830 24{08/2007  24/08/2008-2308/2013
(Note i (P i)
1,508,500 - - (100,000) 1,408,500 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
11,267,500 - - 100,000) 11,167,500
Total At 17300000 - - (100000 17,200,000
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Share options and share option schemes (continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which the outstanding options
were granted were as follows:

BRERBRESTSE @

B3 -

0]

REZ W ARITEBRER L AR - BRIMEhA S
BT EXRAR - ARFRRGZKHENT

Closing price per share immediately

Date of grant BEBH before the date of grant
RERHASNZERETE

HK$

BT

23 August 2007 —ETEFNA=Z+=H 0.860
24 August 2009 —ETAFNA=F+MA 0.670

Employees include employees of the Group and of the subsidiaries of Roly
International (other than the Directors) working under employment contracts with
the Group or subsidiaries of Roly International which are regarded as "continuous
contracts” for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57, Laws of Hong
Kong).

The Company has used the Black-Scholes Model for estimating the fair value of
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. The Black-Scholes Model is
one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair value of an option which can
be exercised before the expiry of the option period. The assumptions used in the
calculation are:

(a) Risk-free interest rate - the yield of 4-year Exchange Fund Notes on the date
of grant
(b) Expected volatility of share price - annualised volatility for one year

immediately preceding the date of grant
(0 Expected life of share options - 3.5-4.5 years
(d) Expected dividend paid out rate - 40%

The amount charged to in the income statement for the year ended 30 April 2013 was
approximately US$2,000 (2012: US$11,000).

No option was granted during the year under review/during the corresponding period
last year.

The calculation of the fair value of options using the Black-Scholes Model is based on
various assumptions and is only an estimate. It is possible that the financial benefit
accruing to the option holders may be substantially different from the value of
options calculated.

(ii)

(iii)

EEEERBEEASEREHER 2 HBARLZE
BELY BB EDE7ZRBGIIME - HWES[H
BAW]E) IERAKERZHRBERZMB AR TE
ZIEE (BERH) -

ARRBERAMANR - FRAEAGABEE_TZT =
FREEASREBREZATE - AOR — FBE
BARMBARBRERRERAN A TITEEREATE
ZHA—EERER - A ERRAZBROT

@  mERFE - A RNERNERES AR
ETE

) REZEFRE-ZRRLADN—F2FE
LR tE

(0 BB TBETHARR — 3.5 4.5F
(d) FEFTAE BR H & — 4000

HE-_Z-—=—FHA-+ALFEZRSRIHZEE
#92,000% 7T (ZF— =4 : 11,000%7T) °

RABBFERN /& F RS ET L ELE -
RAMANR - SRR ERREZ X TFEDRE

ZRBRAEE  WEBNEE - BERERSE A ZER
MBS AT EBRE BEHRERES
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Directors
The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
WANG Lu Yen
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

Non-executive Director
WONG Wai Ming

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Mr. WONG Wai Ming and Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, in
accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws, will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Directors' service contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have a service contract with the
Group which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations

As at 30 April 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO, or were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(a) Interests and short positions in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations

EERADFAREEBEE 2R - A
RO RESP 2ES

R-FB-—=FEOA=1R  ARAZEERITH
BERARA S HATAAREE (FRREBZ
Bl 5718 EH REEEGISEXVED) 2 R1 - 16
Bty RESFEAACARARARBE R R
{EpIE3s21M5F B 2 Bt 2 s kxR - 3k (1
FE) RERETARNE AR RA RERPT2HE
@mKRBI

() RADAREMBEZB 2RO 2
BRIXE

Company/Name of

Percentage
shareholding in
the same class

Number and class of securities as

associated corporations Name of Directors Capacity of securities at 30 April 2013

(Note 1)
N-—E—=

mA=+H

* HEREBIE S

AATHEEEZEE EBRHE &4 HEHE RER ZREBRS
(MtsE1)

Company WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 620,000 0.09%
b /NG ERd EmEA A ordinary shares
EBA
(8]

Company WANG Lu Yen Interest of controlled 477,035,619 69.849%
Y N/NC] T4 corporations ordinary shares
~ (Note 2) TR
RIEHAE 2 (L)

(MiEE2)

Company WONG Hing Lin, Dennis  Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.29%
PiN/NE] H=HEF BEREBA ordinary shares
iR
(L)

Company WONG Wai Ming Beneficial owner 100,000 0.01%
VNN ={EHH BEREAA ordinary shares
Rl
(L)

Company WANG Arthur Minshiang Beneficial owner 260,000 0.04%
VIN/NC] T & BEmEA A ordinary shares
Rl
(L

Megastar WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share 100%
(Note 2) B35 BEaBEAA gL
(M$7E2) (L)
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (continued)
(a) Interests and short positions in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (continued)

Notes:
(1) The letter "L" represents the Director's interests in the shares.

(2) As at 30 April 2013, (i) RGS Holdings Limited (“RGS"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Roly International, owned 431,220,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 63.13% of the issued share capital of the
Company; and (i) Roly International owned 45,815,619 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 6.71% of the issued share capital of the
Company. By virtue of the relationship between Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Roly
International as stated in Note (2) of Section (a) to the paragraph headed
"Substantial shareholders and other persons who are required to disclose
their interests pursuant to Part XV of the SFO" below, Mr. WANG Lu Yen was
deemed, by virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, to be interested
in all the shares of the Company in which Roly International and RGS were
interested.

(b) Interests and short positions in the underlying shares

EERAQTREEABEE KRG - 8
AR RESFD 2ES (@)

() RADAREABEE 2RO 2

=N

5L -
()
(2)

RE (&)

(U TEEERIR DT 2 s -

R-ZE—Z=ZFWA=+8" (2EEEZ2E
& [ff JB A FIRGS Holdings Limited ([RGS]) # A
431,220,000fR AR EIRD - (HAR BB BEITIRA
#763.130% : K (i) 2 6k BUBR ¥ 5 45,815,619k AN A
ARG - (AR AR B EITRALET1%  HRT
X[ E BRRE RARIRE FH I B K] SEXVERZE B
BAER 2 Hitb A — R (a) 201D 2 FT FE(2) ATt
TS ERSHER 2 HNBEE  RIEBEESR
HEEPIEXVE 2 6 - THREEERE AR
B2 EEI RRGSATHR A 2 F A AL AR 7 2 1

Eh

of the Company and its associated corporations BERRE
Number of underlying
Company/Name of shares comprised in
associated corporations Name of Directors Capacity the options
(Notes 1 and 2)
BREmREZ
b NG )N g == o 54 HERDEE
(PFE1R22)
Company WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 500,000 (L)
PiN/N| F#EFE EmfBA
Company WONG Hing Lin, Dennis Beneficial owner 3,782,500 (L)
PIN/NG)| =EF EmfBA
Company WONG Wai Ming Beneficial owner 500,000 (L)
N/ =& BEmEEA
Company WANG Arthur Minshiang Beneficial owner 312,500 (L)
IN/NE| F B EmEAA
Company TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius Beneficial owner 625,000 (L)
¥iN/NE]| HEDT EmEAA
Company Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Beneficial owner 312,500 (L)
YiN/NC] Em#EA A
Notes: B EE -
(1) The letter "L" represents the Director's interests in the shares. (1) [L] s EER R 2 s -
(2) Details of the above underlying shares are set out in the paragraph headed (2) i iEERO 2 FEER [ESEERG KESH

"Directors' rights to acquire shares or debentures".
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Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (continued)

(c) Interests and short positions in the debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations
As at 30 April 2013, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had interests or short positions in the debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures
Movements of the options granted by the Company to the Directors
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year under review
were set out in the paragraph headed "Share options and share option
schemes" above.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

EERAQXTREMBEBER Z2R®D - 8
ERORESPFZES @)

() RELABDRHEMEBELIEZESP 2
mwRRE
RZEBE—=FNA=1+H"  ARAIZES
RITBREEMERAAR REAHEE 2
BETHBEATARRAREZALHE
1&HZE35215TFE 2 B 2 sk s -
FIRBIZETREMERR R KRBT 2
AR -

EERERMDNES 2EF

AR ARARBBRFENIRE =TT~ FRHBRET
BB TES BB BHN L [RIERS
MeHERTEI) B -

B EXPIREE SN RARBESE AERRRE
ARRFEEAZERAF - BRMHERRSKNE
RERESET IR A EE R AR AR
DA AT B AR E B 2 B0 S (B 75 M BRI & o
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Report of the Directors
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Substantial shareholders and other persons who
are required to disclose their interests pursuant to

Part XV of the SFO

(a) Substantial shareholders of the Company

As at 30 April 2013, the following shareholders (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are set out above) had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of

the SFO:

TERRERERESFRBERMFEXVE
ARBERECHMAL

() ARTZEERR
AZE—=HMAZ+A - THRE (ER
ARFZBGRABRS 2 RERARE
R X2 ARAEERITHARBIN) R
ARFZ B RARBIR G A ARAK
DRIBEES R DI BT E 2B
22 AR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares of the interests as at
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Company held 30 April 2013
(Note 1)
R=F-—=
BEAAT MA=+HZ
FERREE 51 BB EEgAEs
(PfF3E)
RGS Beneficial owner 431,220,000 (L) 63.13%
Em#EA A
Roly International Beneficial owner 45,815,619 (L) 6.71%
g EmEAA
Interest of controlled 431,220,000 (L) 63.13%
corporation (Notes 2 and 3)
REHER 2w (HiE2k3)
Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited Interest of controlled 477,035,619 (L) 69.84%
corporations (Notes 2 and 3)
SPEHEAB 2 s (M2 k3)
Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited Interest of controlled 477,035,619 (L) 69.84%

corporations (Notes 2 and 3)

AT HLAE 2 e (a2 l3)
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Substantial shareholders and other persons who
are required to disclose their interests pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO (continued)

(a) Substantial shareholders of the Company (continued)

(a)

FERRRBEZHFRBEKROIEXVE
BREERCHMAL @

KATZETERE ()

Approximate
Number of percentage of

shares of the interests as at

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Company held 30 April 2013
(Note 1)
R=ZZE—=F
BFEAXATHE WA=+HZ
FTERREE 1=20) BHEEE RSN
(FF&ET)
Megastar Interest of controlled 477,035,619 (L) 69.84%
corporations (Notes 2 and 3)
ZEGEE 2w (2 k3)
Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. Interest of controlled 477,035,619 (L) 69.84%
corporations (Notes 2 and 3)
ZEGEE 2w (2 k3)
One Principle Development Limited Interest of controlled 477,035,619 (L) 69.849%
corporations (Notes 2 and 3)
RIEHLER 2w (2 k3)
CHIM Pui Chung Interest of controlled 477,035,619 (L) 69.84%

EER corporations (Notes 2 and 3)
SEHAE 2 s (MFE2&3)
Notes: MisE :

The letter "L" represents the entity's interests in the shares.

As at 30 April 2013, (i) RGS, a wholly owned subsidiary of Roly International, owned
431,220,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately 63.13% of the issued
share capital of the Company; and (i) Roly International owned 45,815,619 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 6.71% of the issued share capital of
the Company. Roly International is wholly owned by Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited.
RI Holdings Bermuda Limited is held by Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited as
to 92.7% and by Megastar as to 0.73%. Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited
is held by each of Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. and Megastar as to 45.22% and
54.78% respectively. Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. is wholly owned by One Principle
Development Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. CHIM Pui Chung. Megastar is
wholly owned by Mr. WANG Lu Yen. Mr. WANG Lu Yen, an executive Director, is also
a director of RGS, Roly International, Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited, Rl Investment
Holdings Bermuda Limited and Megastar.

As at the date of this annual report, Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited is
wholly owned by Megastar; and all of RI Investment Holdings, Ltd., One Principle
Development Limited and Mr. CHIM Pui Chung have ceased to have an interest in the
shares of the Company.

L) Toie BB R P 2 -

RIZE-—=ZFOA=+H ((Z2HERZ2EHMRBEAR
AIRGSHE £431,2200000x A R A & fn - AR AIE #
7 B% 7 %963.1300 ¢ R (i) 2 BB BR E B 45,815,6190% 2
RARG  BARDREBITRELNETI% - 2 BHEEK
FRI Holdings Bermuda Limited® & # 4 ° Rl Holdings
Bermuda Limited%> Bl FARI Investment Holdings Bermuda
Limited &2 Megastarid 5 92.79520.73%& % © Rl Investment
Holdings Bermuda Limited% 5l FARI Investment Holdings,
Ltd. & Megastart 5 45.2200254.78004 % ° Rl Investment
Holdings, Ltd.F30ne Principle Development Limited%®
BHE MEELS—FRBERRLEZERBZRA -
Megastar i F B £ 2 EHEA - PITESTHRE L E
JNARGS » 2 B B - Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited * RI
Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited }2MegastarZ &% ©

7R 5 T % B H§ - RI Investment Holdings Bermuda
Limited AMegastar2 & #4 Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. *
One Principle Development Limited & &5 8.5 & B T B #
BARBRM P 2 1 o
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Substantial shareholders and other persons who

are required to disclose their interests pursuant to

Part XV of the SFO (continued)

(b) Other persons who are required to disclose their
interests pursuant to Part XV of the SFO
Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed "Directors' interests
in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” and paragraph (a) above, as at 30
April 2013, no other person had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which are required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

Related party transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
during the year under review are disclosed in Note 32 to the financial
statements. Save as disclosed below, these related party transactions
fall under the definition of a connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction, but are exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders' approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Connected transactions

The following transactions between certain connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company constitute continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and are subject to the
announcement, reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions have been entered into and
are ongoing for which relevant announcements had been made by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

1. Continuing connected transaction relating to
Linmark (HK) Limited
On 15 April 2011, Linmark (HK) Limited entered into a tenancy
agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) with Sky Fame Group Limited
("Sky Fame") whereby Sky Fame agreed to lease to Linmark (HK)
Limited Flat 85 on 9/F. and Flat 85 on 10/F, Tower 15, Hong Kong
Parkview and Carpark Space Nos. 1026 and 1040 of Entrance 1
(Level 6), 88 Tai Tam Reservoir Road, Hong Kong (“Premises”) on
a fully-furnished basis for a term of 24 months commencing on 1
May 2011, provided that both Linmark (HK) Limited and Sky Fame
have an option to terminate the Tenancy Agreement by giving two
months' notice to the other party in writing. The monthly rent
(exclusive of rates and government rent) payable by Linmark (HK)
Limited to Sky Fame under the Tenancy Agreement is HK$200,000.
The Premises are used as the staff quarters of Mr. WANG Lu Yen,
an executive Director.
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Connected transactions (continued)

1.

Continuing connected transaction relating to
Linmark (HK) Limited (continued)

The entire issued share capital of Sky Fame is owned as to 50%
by Mr. WANG Lu Yen, an executive Director, the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company and a director of Sky Fame,
and as to 50% by his spouse. Accordingly, Sky Fame is an associate
of Mr. Wang and a connected person of the Company.

On 12 April 2013, the Tenancy Agreement was renewed in respect
of the Premises for a term of 24 months commencing on 1 May
2013 with the same terms as the previous Tenancy Agreement.

Continuing connected transaction relating to
Tamarind International Limited

On 28 November 2011, Tamarind International Limited ("Tamarind")
(for its own and on behalf of its subsidiaries from time to time
(together with Tamarind are collectively referred to as “Tamarind
Group")) entered into a master lease agreement (“Master Lease
Agreement”) with Wellbuild International Limited ("Wellbuild")
(for its own and on behalf of its subsidiaries from time to time
(together with Wellbuild are collectively referred to as “Wellbuild
Group")) whereby Wellbuild Group agreed to lease to Tamarind
Group certain portion of a commercial building in Shanghai,
PRC ("Properties”) with gross floor area of approximately 1,967
square metres by way of sub-letting arrangement for a term of
3 years commencing on 1 April 2012. The monthly rent (inclusive
of management fee) payable by Tamarind to Wellbuild under the
Master Lease Agreement is HK$330,000. The Properties are used by
Tamarind Group as its Shanghai office.

Wellbuild is (i) a wholly-owned subsidiary of Roly International;
and (ii) a controlled corporation and an associate of Mr. WANG
Lu Yen who is an executive Director, the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company and a director of Wellbuild.
Accordingly, Wellbuild and its subsidiaries are regarded as
connected persons of the Company.

BERXS @)

1.

ERME (B8 BRAFZEERE
RS (4#)

R 28 BITIRAD B RARQRAIT
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Connected transactions (continued)

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
consider that these continuing connected transactions were conducted
in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the agreements. The Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) are of the view
that the terms of these continuing connected transactions were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

All connected transactions were reviewed by the independent
non-executive Directors at the meeting of the Audit Committee held
on 10 July 2013. The independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the aforesaid connected transactions were entered into (a) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal
commercial terms; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain fact finding procedures
on the above continuing connected transactions on a sample basis in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
"Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information" and with reference to Practice Note 740
"Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules" issued by the HKICPA. The Board confirmed that
it had received a letter from the auditors of the Company confirming
that nothing has come to the auditors' attention that the continuing
connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company if the transactions involve provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(3)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(4)  have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in
the previous announcements dated 15 April 2011 and 28 November
2011 respectively.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the transactions stated above. A copy of the auditors' letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Directors' interests in contracts

Save as disclosed above and in Note 32 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company, any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year under review.

Major customers and vendors of the Group

During the year under review, the five largest customers of the Group
in aggregate accounted for approximately 68.0% of the turnover of the
Group and the largest customer accounted for approximately 29.6% of
the turnover of the Group.

The five largest vendors of the Group in aggregate accounted for
approximately 25.09% of the Group's total shipment volume placed by the
Group and the largest vendor accounted for approximately 7.6% of the
Group's total shipment value placed by the Group.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
500 of the issued share capital of the Company) had any interest in the
top five vendors or customers noted above.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's
listed securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's securities during the year under review.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Financial summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 140 and 141.
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Corporate governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company are
set out in the section headed "Corporate Governance Report” on pages
17 to 35.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year under review.

Event after the reporting period
Details of the significant event after the reporting period of the Group
are set out in Note 36 to the financial statements.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Ernst
& Young as auditors of the Company to hold office until conclusion of
the next annual general meeting at a fee to be agreed with the Directors.

On behalf of the Board

WANG Lu Yen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 12 July 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B AZBENRE =S

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= Ik

WWW.ey.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

To the shareholders of Linmark Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Linmark Group
Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group") set
out on pages 55 to 139, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 30 April 2013, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors' responsibility for the consolidated

financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

Ernst & Young
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BB REE

Auditors' responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30
April 2013, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
12 July 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement
rr AW

Year ended 30 April 2013
BHE_ZT—=FHA=1THILFE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Note US$'000 US$'000
(=2 TEx FE7T
REVENUE Ik &5 5 110,047 100,621
Cost of sales HE A (82,459) (77,123)
Gross profit E 5 27,588 23,498
Other income H g A 5 1,078 1,454
General and administrative expenses —RERAITE RS (23,543) (22,014)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEN B AT Z WS 28(a) - 191
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary REN— XM B A7) 2 i 28(b) - (97)
Loss on deregistration of a branch BUHRM —x 5 Qa2 EiE (193) =
Share of loss of a jointly-controlled entity — JE{h —ZK HFIIE 4T L ~ E51E (1) (1)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AT R 6 4,929 3,031
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigsife (Ax) 9 403 (247)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EATEEA
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY EiEFEERR 10 5,332 2,784
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AAREERERSTE AENL
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS FSRER
OF THE COMPANY (expressed in US cent) (AZEALZ %) 1
Basic HAK 0.8 0.4
Diluted e 0.8 0.4

Details of the dividends and distribution to shareholders of the Company ~ ZARQ A48 FARE Z I B R AR ELH 2 2R EE
are set out in Note 12 to the financial statements. AR SRR EE12 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
/\\/ N I:| %EJ’I&

Year ended 30 April 2013
HE_ZT—=FHA=1THILFE

2013 2012
=E—= —E——F
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEA 5,332 2,784
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hp 2 EUA
Exchange differences: MEH =58
Translation of foreign operations B GINETS 46 75
Reclassification adjustments included FTALRE WEmR 2
in the consolidated income statement BB
- loss on dissolution of a subsidiary — B —RMB AR ZER - 97
- loss on disposal of subsidiaries — HEMBAR . EE = L
- loss on deregistration of a branch —BUHA—X o AR 2 EE 193 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FEH B2 EUIK A 239 173
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR S EZ2EUAEEE 5,571 2,957
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR ITIEIAILR
As at 30 April 2013
RNZE—=FMWHA=+H

2013 2012
—E—=5F —E—_F
Note US$'000 US$'000
(=2 FEx FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 13 1,041 998
Goodwill BE 14 26,333 26,333
Available-for-sale financial asset AtHEemEE 15 84 84
Investment in a jointly-controlled entity R—RAEREHTE KA 17 11 12
Deferred tax assets RIETIAE B 18 19 13
Total non-current assets JEMBNVE EE AR 27,488 27,540
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade receivables JEUE 5 BR R 19 5,456 5,367
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TS FIE « e M EMEWFIE 20 3,728 3,120
Tax recoverable AU B 7518 418 212
Bank deposit with initial term of WA 17 sk HR 8 = 1E A
over three months ZIRTTER 21 = 1,997
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFMBEEAR 21 24,335 17,816
Total current assets MENE ELEEE 33,937 28,512
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables JERE SRR 22 5,526 5,997
Accruals and other payables FEstE A M H b fE 508 23 10,488 8,574
Tax payable FERT AR IE 1,686 1,468
Total current liabilities MEN B BB 17,700 16,039
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 16,237 12,473
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERABAER 43,725 40,013
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREEE
Post-employment benefits 1 8 RIREF 24 1,053 1,070
Total non-current liability IERBE FEMREE 1,053 1,070
NET ASSETS EEFE 42,672 38,943
EQUITY &
Issued capital BEBITRA 25 13,661 13,661
Reserves B 27(a) 29,011 25,282
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE RN TFEE AL
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ERAEE 42,672 38,943

WANG Lu Yen E#&RE

Director &%

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis ZE

Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A HEBENE

Year ended 30 April 2013
HE_ZT—=FHA=1THILFE

/\\/ \

Attributable to owners of the Company

LONGE 2PN 4
Share Capital  Exchange
Issued Share option Special redemption fluctuation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve’ reserve reserve  earnings Total equity
ERfT B BE  EXEE ERED
BA  RAEEE R 1 e #E REBN EzeE
Note US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000
k3 Txn T=n TEn T%n Txn S FET T
At 1 May 2011 RZE——FHA—H 13,661 22,711 223 184 48 (850) m 36,748
Profit for the year ERRMN - - - - - - 2,784 2,784
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FEEMZEMRA
Exchange differences on translation of BERNER
foreign operations EAEE - - - - - 75 - 75
Reclassification adjustments ERPERE
- loss on dissolution of a subsidiary —BRA-—FHBAR
pd 7 - - - - - 97 - 97
- loss on disposal of subsidiaries - HENHBARIZER - - B - - 1 _ 1
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EE2EYALE - - - - - 173 2,784 2,957
Equity-settled share option arrangements ARV, ff 2 BEIRIEZ HE 26 - = i = - - - 1
Share options lapsed during the year FERNE KM BIRE - - (8) - - - 8 -
Interim 2012 dividend paid BRZS-ZF4HRE 12 = = = = = = (773) (773)
At 30 April 2012 R-E-—FWA=1H 13,661 2271 226 184 48 (677) 2,790 38943
At 1 May 2012 —Z--%E7f-A 13,661 2,711 26 184 4 (677) 2,790 38943
Profit for the year FRRF - - - - = = 5332 5332
Other comprehensive income for the year:  EEEMBZEARA :
Exchange differences on translation of BERNER 2
foreign operations EHEE - - - - - 46 - 46
Reclassification adjustment BN ERE
- loss on deregistration - EH—F A 2R
of a branch VA 3! - - - - - 193 - 193
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2ERALE - - - - = 239 5332 5,571
Equity-settled share option arrangements ~ BARIES (1 7 B IR IEZ 1t 2 = = 2 = = = - 2
Share options lapsed during the year FRB KM Bk = = (2 - - - 2 -
Final 2012 dividend paid BRZS-ZFRBRE 12 - - - - - - (439) (439)
Interim 2013 dividend paid —E-=FFERE 12 - - - = = = (1,405) (1,405)
At 30 April 2013 R-E-ZENA=1H 13,661 22,711 226 184 48 (438) 6,280 42,672
Representing: K
Proposed 2013 final dividend R =FRHEKE 12 = = = - = = 1,054 1,054
Others Hit 13,661 22, 226 184 48 (438) 5226 41,618
At 30 April 2013 R-E-=EMA=1H 13,661 22,711 226 184 48 (438) 6,280 42,672

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of share capital

of the Company issued and the aggregate amount of nominal value of share capital
of subsidiaries acquired by the Company through an exchange of shares.

58 ‘ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2013

# Rl EEERAR R B HTRATELEARRIEBIA
RN AREZ B AR AEEAR L EHE -



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

/\\/ \ Eﬁli;ﬁi%%

Year ended 30 April 2013
=FMHA=TRHIELFE

:I:—?

2013 2012
—E—= —ET——F
Note US$'000 US$'000
g5 FTER FETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RKREXK2RERE
Profit before tax: FREL AT A - 4,929 3,031
Adjustments for: KRR
Share of loss of a jointly-controlled entity — fE{h—K L RIIEHIBERE 2 E5i8 1 1
Interest income FEWA 5 (55) (55)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment R Was 6 (2) (14)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A Rl s 6 - (191)
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary e — XM B AR 2 EE 6 - 97
Loss on deregistration of a branch BB M —Ro AR ZEE 6 193 =
Depreciation e 6 758 377
Equity-settled share option expense VARR#E 2 5 2 BB e i B 6 2 [
5,826 3,257
Decrease in inventories FERD = 25
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 5 BR SR8 N (89) (306)
Increase in prepayments, TERTRIR - e R H AL
deposits and other receivables FRIEIE N (608) (439)
Decrease in trade payables FERTE 5 BR SR A (471) (675)
Increase in accruals and other payables FERT & A % E e A< SR IE 8 N 1,914 2,264
Decrease in post-employment benefits & B RINEFIR (17) (45)
Cash generated from operations &%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ@ 6,555 4,081
Tax refunded/(paid) RE(BRA) B8 509 (308)
Net cash flows from operating activities KRBTSR SF 5 7,064 3,773
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES R EZBFESRERE
Interest received EHFE 55 55
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BER
plant and equipment B (801) (1,022)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, .':HE%¥ C HE K
plant and equipment B 2 21
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEEMAFE  28(a) - 192
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposit with e FZ s ={E A 2
initial term of over three months RITFEFRD (35 0) 1,997 (1,997)
Net cash flows from/(used in) WEEBE,(FTE)
investing activities REFHE 1,253 (2,751)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEBEERER

Year ended 30 April 2013

HE_Z =—FNA=tHIFE

2013 2012
=E—= —E——F
US$'000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
CASH FLOW FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY —EREETHMEHESRE
Dividends paid EfRE (1,844) (773)
Net cash flow used in a financing activity —IEHRE R AER ST (1.844) (773)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HERBELEEEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS B hnFEEE 6,473 249
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FH)ZIRE NMIREHFEIER 17,816 17,538
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net MR 22 - F5E 46 29
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ER>H4LRHLSZEEH 24,335 17.816
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND HERBEEEEHZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS EER DT
Cash and bank balances IRE RIRITES 24,335 17,816
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Statement of Financial Position
B fsAR o R

As at 30 April 2013
RZE—=FWA=1+H

2013 2012
=F—= —E——4F
Note US$'000 US$'000
(=2 FEx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR Z&KE 16 50,843 52,133
Total non-current assets EREEERRE 50,843 52,133
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{SZIE « 24 M A EUGRIE 20 21 10
Cash and cash equivalents Be MBS EFEIER 21 134 90
Total current assets MBNEEBT 155 100
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Accruals and other payables s E B M E A ER I 23 129 46
Total current liabilities ME A BB 129 46
NET CURRENT ASSETS nBEEFRE 26 54
Net assets BEFE 50,869 52,187
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITIRAR 25 13,661 13,661
Reserves B 27(b) 37,208 38,526
TOTAL EQUITY AR 50,869 52,187
WANG Lu Yen E#2E WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EEF
Director £ Director £

HERBERAT —T—=F4% | 6]



Notes to the Financial Statements
B TSR M 5t

30 April 2013
—E—=FA=+H
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

2.1

Linmark Group Limited ("Company") is an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries (together with the Company are
collectively referred to as the "Group") are principally engaged in
the sales of merchandise and the provision of procurement and
value-added services.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 25 January 2002 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company's shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange") since 10 May
2002. In the opinion of the Directors, the holding company of the
Company is Roly International Holdings Ltd., which is incorporated
in Bermuda, and the ultimate holding company is Megastar
Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
[slands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(which comprise standards and interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), and
International Accounting Standards (“IASs") and interpretations
approved by the IASB Interpretations Committee that remain
in effect) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for an available-for-sale
financial asset, which has been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in United States dollars ("US$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 30 April 2013. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. All inter-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from inter-
group transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation
in full.

62 ‘ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2013

2.1

AREH
WEREERAR ((RRT)) ARAER
AR HHEAR (RARTATHR (AR
CDESTE LR ST BT
B -

AAFARZEZE_F—A=-THARER
RE-NN—FRAVEEBEREFMAKL
BERBERET AR o NA7 2 M
SR ML AClarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda > AR BIRZ AR =
EE_FHATHERBHERSMER
~aE ([BRF) EREM-EFRE -
RABZERARAZHBEBRZERERA
7 (REREFMAL) REKRIZERAR A
Megastar Holdings Limited (728 4 5 = AF
EMAKL) o

Itk < B 75 ¥R 3R T0 AR 15 B BR B 7% ¥R £ A
(TERMBHREER ) (BREBRIDALER
HEREAEAZE S ((EREENER
B AHhz Al RRERHBER G E
AlZEgRBRE et EZ B S £R
(TERREER]) kBB REBRFIK
PIZBBEREMBRE - F—HAHELES
BEERBAFEEN  HEMBHER
TIRIBE LKA A RSB - WEH B |RKTS
UET ([Er]) 2% BAEHEHBI - T
FEEOABRERENZTET -

REERE

HEVBHRREEARTARENB QA
E-T-=FWHA=THLFEZHBR
= o BB H R 2 WS HEER
RAEMER - W B2 S BERRE - It
BRAZEEEAKERER (IAKEE
SEHEZE) BTUGS  IHEFEE
EZEHERIEZBRIE - EEARFHE
ZiER Ry FREARFRRZMEE
ZABIR B et MR SRR E B



2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to
the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first

time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of International

IFRS 1 Amendments

Financial Reporting Standards

- Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for First-
time Adopters

IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial

Instruments: Disclosures -
Transfers of Financial Assets

IAS 12 Amendments Amendments to IAS 12 Income

Taxes - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
amendments to IFRS 7, the adoption of the revised IFRSs has had
no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures -
Transfers of Financial Assets

The IFRS 7 Amendments require additional disclosures about
financial assets that have been transferred but not derecognised
to enable users of the Group's financial statements to understand
the relationship of those assets that have not been derecognised
with their associated liabilities. In addition, the amendments
require disclosures about the entity's continuing involvement in
derecognised assets to enable users to evaluate the nature of, and
risks associated with, such involvement. As the Group does not
have any transfer transactions of financial assets, the adoption of
these amendments has had no effect on the financial statements.

2.1

2.2
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23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

IFRS 1 Amendments

I[FRS 7 Amendments

IFRS 9

[FRS 10

[FRS 11

[FRS 12

[FRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 Amendments

[FRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27 (Revised)
Amendments

IFRS 13

IAS 1 Amendments

IAS 19 Amendments
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Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards -
Government Loans?

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures -
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS
11 and IFRS 12 - Transition
Guidance?

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS
12 and IAS 27 (Revised) -
Investment Entities®

Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements -
Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income'

Employee Benefits?
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements?

IAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

IAS 32 Amendments Amendments to IAS 32 Financial

Instruments: Presentation -
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

IAS 36 Amendments Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable
Amount Disclosure for Non-
financial Assets®

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine?

[FRIC 21 Levies®
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of [FRSs
2009-2011 Cycle issued in May 20122

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

O

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of the operations
and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which
the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration
of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be
realised upon its dissolution. The profits or losses from the joint
venture's operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective
capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint
venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or indirectly,
over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint
control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less
than 20% of the joint venture's registered capital and is in
a position to exercise significant influence over the joint
venture; or

(d)  an equity investment accounted for in accordance with IAS
39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20%
of the joint venture's registered capital and has neither
joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant
influence over, the joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entity

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties having
unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-
controlled entity.

The Group's interest in a jointly-controlled entity is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. The Group's share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of the jointly-controlled entity is
included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its jointly-controlled entity
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the jointly-
controlled entity, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESFEEREHME @

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate IFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 30 April. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than deferred
tax assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises.

2.4 FESHEERE @

EBEOHRBE )

BEDBBI HEEEEECASELS
iz (IREEEEMMAR]) 27 Il € 5k
BE - NIRGELSMN (ReELEEMA
B Z el S BEEREREE - BIFERR
BEEB - EERZAEBREBETAEZ
& HAREE o

WEEoREReELEEN (KREEE
BAAR) 2O MZEMHNDERBE
ﬁ’% CRIEEEME S ER 2 Wk BB

BT E SRR m B ARES
Eﬁﬁﬁ o FERZIEM T & Z BRI T H
EEE U EENBESELEU RS
DEEHESTRTE ©

FEMEEZRE

HWEEFEREDRKALTFERE
BAA (RECHAEE SREEREBE
5N - B IRE E 2 A B SR
e BEZABDSEBEREELRTES

Bz EREERE "¥TETDB%%’%W
AMEFPZESCHEAE  UKEBEER

&R & E B%iFE%IEﬁEéiZiE@?ﬁ)\
BERBBUYNEMEEXEEMARNME

EZRER/A - EUHBERT - Al U EHEE

NZREEMBZREELENETE -

BEREERS LB EER - BE
BB TUABR - RETERIEAEER
BErARREREF AT AR RTES
WA - Ji/()iﬁgiiﬁﬁﬁﬁziﬁﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁrr@&
ZBEEEZFETRARE - BEBBR/NEE

A B A MR R HIBR o

HEEEERAT —E—=F5% | 69



Notes to the Financial Statements
RS M T

30 April 2013

—E—=FWA=1+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESFEEREHME @

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person's

family and that person,

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESFEEREHME @

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of 5 years or the

lease terms
Furniture and equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All reqgular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include an available-for-sale financial
asset, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, and deposits
and other receivables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in the income statement in financial costs for loans
and in other expenses for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESFEEREHME @

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in the market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or
losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement in other income, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the income statement in other expenses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the income
statement as other income in accordance with the policies set out
for "Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (o) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management's intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted
only when the Group has the ability and intent to hold until the
maturity date of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity
is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “"pass-through" arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESFEEREHME @

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the income statement, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is "significant” or "prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant" is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement - is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the income statement. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESFEEREHME @

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables and other
payables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is currently an enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis and
other valuation models.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESFEEREHME @

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

2.4 FESHEERE @

Fr&®H (&)
BEEMEEBER - VERNERZRE TN
FERE - HEA T BSRRSD -

s HAREABEBANIEBAHRS
FrEERBE (RRXZHLTTZE
SRS A KRB S MK EER) FrE
EZRERBERE &

KRB LRE - BERRZRE LR
BRA AR ERHERE
B o T 95k [0 B A AR 2 By A AT DAE
NEREZRA A N BRI &3
EE=g

z

o> B

i

BEXERBEEDRMAMBRA THRERE
B APRREERRERABDBRHREES
Bz mmEmiER - B H BRTE M A
BRANRERZ8  ABAMEERR
ABAMEBEZ AEUESHEARER
EERIABE - HePA BRI -

* BRRIFXBEHRZTHERIEE
FEERRZHETFESE N
SRRV RN KR MEEZA T
RERSZRBEEREBEE - &

e HENBRAR BMEARRAZEAT
ZREBBZATHREREE 2
PEE B = RS & 7 ] B R B B % o
BRERBENERES - ABRAEHR
ZRZBERT THAECEREE
7 o

HERBERAT —T—=F4% | 8]



Notes to the Financial Statements
RS M T

30 April 2013

—E—=FWA=1+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESFEEREHME @

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)  from the sale of merchandise, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  commission income, when the underlying goods procured by
the Group are shipped;

() from the rendering of services, reimbursement income
from customers, handling fee income and inspection and
laboratory testing income, when the services are rendered;
and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous paragraph. All
cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are treated
equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
(i) Pension schemes
Defined contribution pension scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory

Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees' basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute 15% to 20%
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Pension schemes (continued)
Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan,
which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the scheme. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined separately
using the projected unit credit valuation method. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised as income or expense when
the net cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains and losses
at the end of the previous reporting year exceed 10% of
the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets at the date. These gains and losses are
recognised over the expected average remaining working
lives of the employees participating in the plan.

The past service cost is recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. If the benefits vest immediately following
the introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, the past
service cost is recognised immediately.

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present
value of the defined benefit obligation less past service cost
not yet recognised and less the fair value of plan assets out
of which the obligations are to be settled. Plan assets are
assets that are held by a long term employee benefit fund or
qualifying insurance policies. Plan assets are not available to
the creditors of the Group nor can they be paid directly to
the Group. Fair value is based on market price information
and in the case of quoted securities it is the published bid
price. The value of any defined benefit asset recognised
is restricted to the sum of any past service cost not yet
recognised and the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan.

An actuarial estimate is made by a professionally qualified
independent actuary, using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method, of the present value of the
Group's future defined benefit obligation under the defined
benefit pension plan earned by the employees as at the end
of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

(i) Employee leave entitlements
The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken
as at the end of the reporting period is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees
in the following year. An accrual is made at the end of the
reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.

(iii) ~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating
the employment of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or
providing termination benefits as a result of an office made
to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of
the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United States dollars,
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
a jointly-controlled entity are currencies other than the United
States dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their income statements are translated
into United States dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 30 April 2013 was US$26,333,000
(2012: US$26,333,000). More details are given in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

Trade receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for impairment
of trade receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit history
of its customers and other debtors and the current market
condition which requires the use of judgements and estimates.
When the expectation on the recoverability of trade and
other receivables is different from the original estimates, such
difference will impact the carrying value of trade receivables and
impairment provisions in the periods in which such estimate has
been changed. Management assesses the provision at the end of
each reporting period. The carrying amounts of trade receivables
and other receivables as at 30 April 2013 was US$5,456,000
(2012: US$5,367,000) and US$1,179,000 (2012: US$1,405,000),
respectively. More details are given in Notes 19 and 20 to the
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related
taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact on the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the periods in which such determination is made. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets as at 30 April 2013 was
US$19,000 (2012: US$113,000).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more likely than
not) that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all available
evidence. Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the
future performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of
other factors are also evaluated in considering whether there is
convincing evidence that it is probable that some portion or all
of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the
existence of taxable temporary differences, tax planning strategies
and the periods in which estimated tax losses can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and related financial
models and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing
evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available within
the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, the asset balance will be reduced and charged to the
income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of an available-for-sale financial asset

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the fair
value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline
in value to determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in the income statement. At 30 April 2013, no
impairment losses have been recognised for the available-for-sale
financial asset (2012: Nil). The carrying amount of the available-
for-sale financial asset was approximately US$84,000 (2012:
US$84,000). More details are given in Note 15 to the financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has two reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) sales of merchandise including garments, fashion
accessories, hardgoods, consumer electronic products and
labels; and

(b)  provision of services including procurement service and
value-added services relating to the procurement agency
business.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax except
that interest income, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, loss on
dissolution of a subsidiary, loss on deregistration of a branch,
share of loss of a jointly-controlled entity as well as corporate and
other unallocated expense are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REHIWEHR )
Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
BmEE = 1 AR 75 &5t
Year ended 30 April 2013 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
BE-_Z—=FNA=1+HLFE FTEx FEx FEx
Segment revenue: DEWE :
Revenue from external customers REINARE 2 Wz 93,003 17,044 110,047
Segment results DHEEE 1,775 3,768 5,543
Interest income FEHA 55
Loss on deregistration of a branch ECHAEM—R D A al 2 Eia (193)
Share of loss of FEAE —RERIEHIE S
a jointly-controlled entity ZEiE (1)
Corporate and other unallocated 2R EAM R D
expenses X (475)
Profit before tax B 5 AT A 4,929
Income tax credit Fris i & 403
Profit for the year FEim A 5,332
Other segment information: HibpEER :
Depreciation e 263 495 758
Capital expenditures BRI 261 540 801
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 Bk FURE 2 17 19
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RETEER ®

Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
72 85 R AR 75 a5t
Year ended 30 April 2012 Us$'000 Us$'000 us$'o00
BE_ZT——FNA=1THILFE FET FX7T FE7T
Segment revenue: SR
Revenue from external customers R BINAR P 2 Uzs 86,156 14,465 100,621
Segment results PREE 1,316 1,857 3.173
Interest income A BWA 55
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR W 191
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary — ##EL—KKIB A Al 2 18 (97)
Share of loss of JER—REREFIEEE
a jointly-controlled entity 28 (1)
Corporate and other unallocated REREMAKDE
expenses s (290)
Profit before tax B B A A 3,031
Income tax expense FR1S > (247)
Profit for the year EEHF 2,784
Other segment information: HipEER :
Depreciation e 146 231 377
Capital expenditures BEARRZ 344 678 1,022
Impairment of trade receivables EUE SR FURE 34 89 123
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information
(@) Revenue from external customers

4.

RE>BER (@)
i 155

(a) ZRESIAEFZWa

2013 2012

—EB-=F —E——4F

US$'000 US$'000

FER FET

Australia SEUM 35,962 37,433
Europe UM 27,833 20,280
Africa FEM 23,217 24,472
North America LM 15,482 11,655
Hong Kong BB 1,002 1,213
Others Hib 6,551 5,568
110,047 100,621

The revenue information above is based on the location of
the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

P aEEHDRETEFPAEZ

5l o

b) FRBEE

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——4F

us$‘oo0 US$'000

Fxx FET

Hong Kong E& 27,188 27,069
Others Hib 197 274
27,385 27,343

LA RBEEERIRIZEEME
W23 Y AEE-HAAHEESR
BENMBRERBAEE °

The non-current assets information above is based on
the location of assets and excludes an available-for-sale
financial asset and deferred tax assets.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REFFER @
Information about major customers FRFEEFZER

Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted to 10% or

more of the Group's revenue is set out below:

KEXTERP (BERERPEAEERE

10003% A _E) 2 Ukz=&aan T

Operating segment 2013 2012
KES R —E-=F —ET——F
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Customer A Sales of merchandise 32,585 32,496
=PA P miHE
Customer B Sales of merchandise 23,215 24,466
=B P miHE
55,800 56,962
5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WHEKREMBA
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net AEBE 2 RmMAEAEB &SR JHEE
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and HERBRERENE FINING 2 BEFE
trade discounts; commission income and the value of services el ARRERE ZEE -
rendered.
An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as follows: REE 2 Was REMPAZ DT
2013 2012
—_B—= T
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Revenue g
Sales of merchandise HEmiHE 93,003 86,156
Commission income Ba U A 17,034 14,463
Rendering of services IRHRT 10 2
110,047 100,621
Other income Hbug A
Bank interest income ERITH B WA 55 55
Reimbursement income from customers KERFPHERIEA 25 26
Handling fee income FEBRA 300 328
Inspecting and laboratory test income e & B B = B S YA 380 374
Others Hih 318 671
1,078 1,454
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBLATER

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REEZ BB ATSEN TI&HE% (T A) BA
(crediting): T&IE
2013 2012
—s—= —=——
Note US$'000 US$'000
gz SEESTT FE7T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFE 2K 82,148 76,389
Cost of services provided ERMERTS 2 A 31 734
Depreciation E 13 758 377
Minimum lease payments under KA E N IR
operating leases: fﬂ%ﬁm
Furniture and equipment NS 93 105
Office premises and staff quarters MAEBENURETES 1,372 1,344
1,465 1,449
Auditors' remuneration® % 2B B <
Audit services EZRTE 298 281
Non-audit services TR 62 21
360 302
Employee benefit expense EEmAFH
(including Directors’ (B IEE =
remuneration - Note 7): — PzE7) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e o TEAL KRR 13,883 12,688
Staff welfare and benefits B TaA Lauk 1,633 1,204
Equity-settled share option expense DAHQ%QHZ%H&%E% 2 11
Pension scheme contributions” RN FTEIHE R
- defined contribution scheme — FREEIZETE 384 424
- defined benefit plans — E R ET & 95 83
15,997 14,410
Foreign exchange differences, net PE W = 58558 340 143
Impairment of trade receivables EUE SR ZOR B 19 19 123
Gain on disposal of items of property, H:'l’é’f*@i B &2
plant and equipment & (2) (14)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B ARz W 28(a) - (191)
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary E—xM B AT ZER 28(b) - 97
Loss on deregistration of a branch OB —xRo Q[ 2 EiE 193 -
* Of the above audit and non-audit services fees, US$289,000 (2012: * LBz R IEEZREERF - 5 54H289,000
US$277,000) and US$52,000 (2012: US$19,000) respectively are payable to ET (ZE— 4 : 277,000 7T) K%52,000% 7T
the Company's auditors. (ZZT——4% : 19,0005k 7T) Bt FARRDAZHEK
B o
At 30 April 2013, the Group had no material forfeited contributions available : R-ZE-—Z=FEOA=+H FXERI\ESEAZ
to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2012: Nil). BUGR IR SR A R R R (B ——F -
=) o
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors' remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

7. EEHEN
AREFZRE EHARBRESRAIEFIZE161
GETIHE CESHMOT

2013 2012

—E—=fF —E—_F

us$‘ooo Us$'000

Group rEH FER FET

Fees we 173 132
Other emoluments: Hibe -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RREYAG 1,294 898

Performance related bonus RIFEMATEAT 683 300

Equity-settled share option expense VAR #ESZ 1+ 2 BE AR HE & R 1 7

Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 70 49

2,048 1,254

Total wBEt 2,221 1,386

Certain Directors were granted share options in respect of their
services to the Group under the share option scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in Note 26 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options which has
been recognised in the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in the
above Directors' remuneration disclosures.
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7.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continucd) 7. EBEEHFHM =
The emoluments of each Director are set out below: BHRESZMEeHIAT :
Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances  Performance share Pension
and benefits related option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonus expense contributions remuneration
SRR A
Ho 2E  REEY  ZBRE BAexd
we RENAG 4 EA #HR b
Bz-8-=f US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Year ended 30 April 2013 MA=THLERE TER S S S T£R TEn
Executive Directors: HTESE:
WANG Lu Yen T8 - 878 455 28 1,362
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis 5EE - 416 228 - 42 686
Non-executive Director: FHTES
WONG Wai Ming HER 37 - - - - 37
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFHTES
WANG Arthur Minshiang Ta3 44 - - - - 44
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HEN 55 - - - - 55
Jakob Jacobus Koert Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS TULLENERS 37 - - - - 37
173 1,294 683 70 2,221
HE_ZT-——F
Year ended 30 April 2012 MA=TRAILEE
Executive Directors: HTES:
WANG Lu Yen 5B - 512 200 2 10 724
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EEF - 386 100 2 39 57
Non-executive Director: FHTES .
WONG Wai Ming aEH 33 - - - 34
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFHTES:
WANG Arthur Minshiang THE 3 - - - 34
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius MEN 33 - - - - 33
Jakob Jacobus Koert Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS TULLENERS 33 - - - 34
132 898 300 7 49 1,386
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DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2012: Nil).

During the year ended 30 April 2013, no emolument was paid to
or receivable by any of the Directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office as
a director of any member of the Group or of any other office in
connection with the management of the Group (2012: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2012: two) Directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in Note 7 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2012: three) highest paid employees who are
neither a Director nor chief executive of the Company are as

EEHFM
FAMEEENERRERE TS
THE(ZZE——F : &) o

RBEE-_T—=FNA=+tBLFE ¥
BERERNEFHREMNMSELSEME
KR MBAREEE 2 BE) - HERAEKHE
EAKERARZEENERASEEERE
AR MR 2 B E (ZF— —F :
&) -

AuGRESHMES
FRAUKRSHFMERBEML (ZT——
F W) BEF - EHMAFBERN L E
7 FA AB= (ZFT—-F: =)
FRARBEFRITRRHEZZSFHHESR
ZFHEFBDT

follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
US$'000 US$'000
Group rEE FEx FEr
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBLREDF 691 663
Performance related bonuses FIRHENTEAL 113 90
Equity-settled share option expense VAR RS B S+ 2 BB AR R & R 1 3
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIHR 13 11
818 767
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 8. BUBREHMES =

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid BT MHNEESRIFTHREHRES 25
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands Bl (LAB T (Bl 27) BATEHENA
presented in Hong Kong dollars (*HK$") is as follows: T :

Number of employees

EE A
2013 2012
—E—=F —E— 4
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to US$192,802 to (FBZEMR 192,802 L E
US$257,069) 257,069%7T.) 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,0017 7T 2 3,000,00078 7T
(equivalent to US$257,070 to (FBE257,070ETLE
US$385,604) 385,6043 7T ) 2 1
3 3
During the year ended 30 April 2013, no emolument was paid BEZZ—=—"FOA=THLFE  #E
to or received by any of the five highest paid employees as an MR A& = BE 8 2 s i R E IR
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation B M ERMBRNINBEREER 2
for loss of office in connection with the management of the HE) - ERBEEAREEEEIERAL
affairs of the Group (2012: Nil). ZEERBAEE (ZE——F : |) o
INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 9. Fi8H (E®R) BX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BBMNER DBRBFEARBBEE 2[5
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong JE 2R B 0% 9% 16.500 (ZF — —4F : 16.5%)
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable outside Hong TR E R o BAEAINE 2 ERT
Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the i AFIE B AR IR A S B S BT el AR
jurisdiction in which the Group operates. LRI EGE -
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——4F
US$'000 US$'000
Group REE T5575 FET
Current BER
- Hong Kong — &5 211 250
- Outside Hong Kong — BB AN R 86 106
Underprovision/(overprovision) BEFERETR
in prior years (FREERR)
- Indian tax refunds — ENERE (806) =
- Others — HAtb 12 (105)
Deferred (Note 18) JRIE (FIzE18) 94 (4)
Total tax (credit)/expense for the year REEHRE (FKe), B EzE (403) 247
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9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued) 9. FiBH E&) BX @

HERRRARRREXRZ BB R B ME
BlARE R BOR TE R G E A BR B A A
ZHRBERXERERBMERFAEZHE (K

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax

(credit)/expense at the effective tax rates are as follows: ),/ AZ2HENT :
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E— 4
US$'000 US$'000
Group REHE SEES FET
Profit before tax R 25 A& A 4,929 3,031

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% 116,500/ EE B R GTE 2 BT

(2012: 16.5%) —E— 4 : 16.5%) 813 500
Adjustments in respect of current tax of i & B RS BN HA A+ 18

previous periods 2R (794) (105)
Effect of different rates for companies RE M RDERE R AR & TSR

operating in other jurisdictions NEEATREE 2 & 99 35
Income not subject to tax BRERIR A (6.493) (5.132)
Expenses not deductible for tax DRAHIF A 5,833 4,834
Tax losses utilised from previous periods ) AR 2 T &8 (1) (69)
Tax losses not recognised REARZ TRIEEE 110 150
Others HAth 30 34
Tax (credit)/expense HIE (Ee) X (403) 247

As of the date of this annual report, the Group received protective
assessments amounting to approximately HK$106,000,000
(equivalent to US$13,590,000) from the Inland Revenue
Department in Hong Kong (“IRD") in respect of queries on the
modus operandi of the Group and the chargeability of the profits
for the years of assessment from 2003/2004 to 2006/2007.

In response to enquiries from IRD, Tax Reserve Certificates
amounting to HK$4,400,000 (equivalent to US$564,000) (2012:
HK$3,250,000 (equivalent to US$417,000)) have been purchased by
two subsidiaries of the Company in pursuit of the holdover of tax
demanded under the protective assessments for these years.

Taking into account the advice given by the independent tax
adviser, the Group maintains the view that sufficient tax provision
has been made in the financial statements.
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10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

11.

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 30 April 2013 is approximately US$524,000 (2012:
US$70,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company (Note 27(b)).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for
the years ended 30 April 2013 and 2012.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based

10.

11.

RAFHER ARG BT

HE_Z-—=FMA=+HILFE AR
AIEA AFE(E4RE & F49524,0005 7T (=
— 4 :70,000%7T) B A ARR 7R
RME27(0) ©

BRER
BREXRBMNIREARAEES ARHEF
BafkFREETERR CHBE -

BE_T——GER-_FE——EMA=+H
THEEAEBTEDBITARTENZA
B& o

AR AN M R TR TR 54

on:
2013 2012
—E-—=£F —T——%F
Earnings 2|
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, &5 &A% EE 7R B 8 BT B
used in the basic earnings per share ZARRRHEB NEGE R
calculation (US$'000) (F=x) 5,332 2,784
Number of ordinary shares TERZEE
Number of ordinary shares in issue STE AT EAN [ 85 2 R T
during the year used in the basic and FARAZFEABZETERR 2
diluted earnings per share calculation ('000) E (F) 683,069 683,069
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12. DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTION 12. RERZIK

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
US$'000 US$'000
FEx TFET

Interim, paid, of 1.60 HK cents B AR HA R B I i A1 60751
(2012: 0.88 HK cent) per ordinary share —E— 4 : 088%51l) 1,405 773

Final, proposed, of 1.20 HK cents FOR R HARR SRR T 3@ AR 1. 20781l

(2012: 0.50 HK cent) per ordinary share (ZZE——14F : 0.50/81l) 1,054 439
2,459 1,212

R-FBE—Z=F+tA+-_H&ETzeR

EEEBRNEE_T—=FNA=TH
LI FEZ R EF IR BAZ1.207510 © 1t
HIREREW AR ZEREHRETP RE A
EARE  BERMAEHZE T —HNFN
AZTHIFERRBEFPIRMNZRE -

At a meeting held on 12 July 2013, the Directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of 1.20 HK cents per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 30 April 2013. This proposed dividend is
not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements,
but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for
the year ending 30 April 2014.

RBEBRE  RARARRR_T—=F

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a distribution of

14.64 HK cents per ordinary share ("Distribution”) was paid to
shareholders of the Company on 28 June 2013. The Distribution
is not reflected as a distribution payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as a distribution out of the
contributed surplus for the year ending 30 April 2014.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BERRE
Leasehold  Furniture and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEMELE BRRRE RE &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Group AEE TEn TEn T=x TEn
30 April 2013 “E-=fWA=tH
At 1 May 2012: ——FRA—-H:
Cost AR 2,825 4,734 403 7,962
Accumulated depreciation SEHITE (2,392) (4,430) (142) (6,964)
Net carrying amount REFE 433 304 261 998
At 1 May 2012, net of RZE—Z—FHA—A8"
accumulated depreciation k2t e 433 304 261 998
Additions NE 727 74 - 801
Disposals HeE - - - -
Depreciation provided REZEE
during the year e (556) (141) (61) (758)
At 30 April 2013, net of A—E—=FNA=1H
accumulated depreciation kR E 604 237 200 1,041
At 30 April 2013: RZE—=FMA=+H:
Cost X A 1,894 4,370 376 6,640
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (1,290) (4.133) (176) (5.599)
Net carrying amount REEE 604 237 200 1,041
30 April 2012 —ﬁ——fﬁ)ﬂ:ﬁl
At 1 May 2011; “Z—%RA—H:
Cost 5X$ 2,454 4941 304 7,699
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (2,345) (4,695) (299) (7,339)
Net carrying amount REFE 109 246 5 360
At 1 May 2011, net of R-_E—FHA—A8"
accumulated depreciation M2t e 109 246 5 360
Additions NE 492 230 300 1,022
Disposals HE (1) (6) - (7)
Depreciation provided REFRE
during the year ne (169) (164) (44) (377)
Exchange realignment BEE 5, AR 2 (2) - -
At 30 April 2012, net of RZT——FHA=+H"
accumulated depreciation k25 E 433 304 261 998
At 30 April 2012: RZE—ZFMA=18:
Cost XA 2,825 4734 403 7,962
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (2,392) (4,430) (142) (6,964)
Net carrying amount REFE 433 304 261 998
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14. GOODWILL 14. &
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
US$'000 US$'000
Group REME FEx FET
At beginning and at end of year TRF AT f2 T 48 26,333 26,333
At end of year RELK

Cost AR 34,827 34,827
Accumulated impairment ZEPRE (8,494) (8,494)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 26,333 26,333

Impairment testing of goodwill BEREENH

Goodwill has been allocated to the following cash-generating
units, which are reportable segments, for impairment testing:

o Sales of merchandise; and

° Provision of services.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management. There are a number of assumptions and estimates
involved in the preparation of cash flow projections for the
period covered by the approved budget. Key assumptions include
the expected growth in revenues and gross margin, timing
of future capital expenditures, long term growth rates and
selection of discount rates. Management prepares the financial
budgets reflecting actual and prior year performance and market
development expectations. Judgement is required to determine the
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and changes
to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow
projections. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 129% (2012: 10%). The estimated growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the cash-generating units beyond the five-year
period is no more than 5%.
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14. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating units is as follows:

14. BT )
EERENE @
PEESBEcELAENAOBE 2 EmAW
T

Sales of merchandise Provision of services Total
AmiHE RERE &t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
= T _—_F ZB-=Z=F _ T _—_F ZZ-—=F _T—_F
us$‘oo0 Us$'o00 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
Group rEE FX FEx SEET FETT FER Fx=T
Goodwill P 26,333 26,333 - - 26,333 26,333
15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 15, AItHESREE
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——4F
US$'000 US$'000
Group rEE FER FET
Club membership, at fair value grFgsE (RATHE) 84 84
The fair value of the club membership is determined with reference EMEENATEDNK2ERERER W
to the price quoted by the relevant club. BIEETE °
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interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RBARIZERE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
US$'000 US$'000
Company RN F] FEx FET
Unlisted shares, at cost * Emike GRECAN) - 9,987
Due from subsidiaries e = NGIE S 53,683 42,696
Due to subsidiaries FESTB B A R FkI8 (2,840) (550)
50,843 52,133
The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries are unsecured, JEW R FERKIEB AR RIBEAERT . &

B B EIgEERE -

MEBRRFEET

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value to the Company
incorporation/ of issued BT
registration ordinary share/ REESH
Name and operations registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
MBI, ERTEERRE
£8 Ay Ed-$it EfRAEE =% CF:3 FTEXHK
Benchmark Profits Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
EEERRES (Ev REEMK
Dowry Peacock Group Limited United Kingdom GBP300 - 60 Investment holding
2 30054 REER
eServices (BVI) Limited" British Virgin Islands US$1 - - Dormant
EEERRES (v TER%
eServices Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Dormant
& 100,000 7T TEXK
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. RMIB AT ZRE (5)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value to the Company
incorporation/ of issued ROFEL
registration ordinary share/ REEDL

Name and operations registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
L, ERTEERRE

=1 AR R R HEfRAEE B if TEXH

Ever Eagle Limited British Virgin Islands UsS$1 - 100 Investment holding
RERRARES (E REER

Glory Sino Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Dormant
EERBRES E EREK

Golden Rules Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding

BEERAF BB BT REER

IGCS Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
EERRRAES E RERK

IGCS International Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Dormant
HBRBRES (E EERK

IGCS Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Dormant
BB 28T EREHG

International Laboratory Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of laboratory

Services Limited B8 178 7T services

BT RB AR LA RERTE R

IS0 International (BVI) Limited” British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Dormant
HEEBARES (E EERK
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. RMIB AT ZKRE (9)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value to the Company
incorporation/ of issued AT
registration ordinary share/ REESH
Name and operations registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
Hl) A ERTEERRE
£8 AL R AT i B AR A E B =§:3 i & FEXRK
ISO International (Holdings) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Provision of technical
BB 1008 7T support and
management services,
and trading of home
lifestyle consumer
electronic products
RESMERER
R%  REXERE
BETEMES
Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding and
EBERARES 50,0003 7T procurement agent
REERRRERE
Linmark Agency (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Procurement agent
30 10,000/ 7T RELRE
Linmark Development (BVI) Limited  British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Procurement agent
ZBRRRES 1%7T REBAIRE
Linmark Electronics Limited** United Kingdom GBP12,500 - 60 Dormant
(In liquidation) HE 12,5005 8% EREG
(BEH)
Linmark Holdings Limited™ British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
HBRBRES (E REER
Linmark (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding,
WE (B8) BB AT o WETL procurement agent
and trading of
merchandise
REEMR - REAR
LERES
Linmark International (Bangladesh)  Bangladesh Taka4,120,000 - 100 Procurement agent
Ltd.* Eay) 4,120,00088 K REBACIE
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. RMIB AT ZRE (5)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value to the Company
incorporation/ of issued ROFEL
registration ordinary share/ REEDL
Name and operations registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
L, ERTEERRE
=1 AR R R HEfRAEE B if TEXH
Linmark International (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong HK$200,000 - 100 Investment holding,
Limited B8 200,000/8 70 procurement agent
MR (%) BRAR and trading of
merchandise
REER - REAE
LEmRES
Linmark Merchandise Consultancy People's Republic of RMB1,500,000 - 100 Provision of marketing
(Shenzhen) Limited** China AR #1,500,0007T consultancy and
WEERESZA ORI ] product development
R AR services
RETISEEDAR
7 om 7 35 R 75
Linmark Westman Investments British Virgin Islands Us$n - 100 Investment holding
Limited HBRBRES RE REER
Market Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Dormant
MEBERRF BB 17T UEEK
Merchandise Creative, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
RBRRRES (E" TERK
Merchandise Creative Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
N 10,0007 7T LEEL
Pacific Technologies Limited United Kingdom GBP45,000 - 60 Dormant
HH 45,000 TERK
Power Path Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Dormant
BEARAF EE 17T HEEYL
Tamarind International British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited EREARHES E REER
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. RMIB AR ZKRE (45)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value to the Company
incorporation/ of issued AT
registration ordinary share/ REESH
Name and operations registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
Hl) A ERTEERRE
£8 AL R AT i B AR A E B =§:3 i & FEXRK
Tamarind International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
B VBT and trading of
merchandise
REEREEMES
Tamarind Trading (Shanghai) People's Republic of RMBS5,500,000 - 100 Procurement agent
Limited** China AR 5500,0007T and trading of
RELES (L8) BRAR HE merchandise
RERELARES
Trend Xpress (Bangladesh) Ltd.” Bangladesh Taka20,000 - 100 Provision of market
ey ks 20,0005 trend consultancy
services
RETHARIERA
Bk
Trend Xpress, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding and
EBERARES (EV provision of market
trend consultancy
services
REER ket mi5
BT IE 35 RS
Trend Xpress Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding,
B R A R A A BB 2B provision of market
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. RMIB AT ZRE (5)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value to the Company
incorporation/ of issued ARAELE
registration ordinary share/ REES L
Name and operations registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
FMAEL BRTEERKRAE
E4 I R AR 3t B MR A EE HE G2 TEER
Westman Linmark (Thailand) Limited  Thailand Ordinary shares - 100 Procurement agent
Z=E Baht5,880,000 IR
and preference shares
Baht6,120,000
I 3FAR5,880,000% 5K &
B 9L 1%6,120,00025 5%
Westman (Singapore) Private Limited Singapore $$200,000 - 100 Procurement agent
N 200,000%T I3 7T REERE
Westown Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Dormant
BEHBRLF BB 100,000/ 7T TmERK
. eServices (BVI) Limited was struck off on 1 November 2012. eServices (BVI) Limited A —ZF——F+—F—H&E
+ Glory Sino Limited, a newly incorporated company, became the wholly-owned ’ — RS Z A FGlory Sino Limitedi R =%
subsidiary of the Company on 1 August 2012. ——FNA—BRABEARRZEZEWNBARR °
g ISO International (BVI) Limited was struck off on 1 May 2013. 3 ISO International (BVI) Limited R = —=FFH A —
o Linmark Electronics Limited was put in administration on 28 July 2009 which 2 Linmark Electronics Limited R =ZFFNFELH =+

was converted into creditors' voluntary liquidation on 25 January 2010.

*x

Linmark Holdings Limited, a newly incorporated company, became the wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company on 26 July 2012. On 1 August 2012,
the Group underwent a restructuring where the 100% equity interest in
Benchmark Profits Limited, Ever Eagle Limited, eServices (BVI) Limited, Golden
Rules Enterprises Limited, IGCS Group Limited, Linmark Westman Investments
Limited, Tamarind International Holdings Limited and Trend Xpress, Inc. were
transferred from the Company to Linmark Holdings Limited.

Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

Linmark Merchandise Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited and Tamarind Trading
(Shanghai) Limited are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
the law of the People's Republic of China. They were not audited by Ernst
& Young Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young global
network.

*%

NB#HEE YR_Z-—TF-—A_+HBER
EREABEEE -

— XK =M AL 2 A Allinmark Holdings Limited
REZZE—=—FtA=Z+"BRAELARRZEE
MEAR - R=ZT—=—F/\A—A  AEH#
1TE#H + A2 F) R Benchmark Profits Limited
Ever Eagle Limited  eServices (BVI) Limited + =72
AR AR] * IGCS Group Limited * Linmark Westman
Investments Limited * Tamarind International
Holdings Limited KTrend Xpress, Inc.Z 10000f% 182
#& T Linmark Holdings Limited °

ZEWTB R RN I BB LK R A5 Pk
I E b 22k & 5t B RIS P R ERABAR A B AT -

MEFRELERZD ORI BRARARKSHE
% (L8) AR AR DREHBUEEZEMARINE
BEME - ZFARWIEMBEBLOKE AN ELS
Pk AR o] H At 22 ok & 5T A S 75 P 2 BRABAR B B AT
EZ o
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17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 17. R—XLFEZEHERZRE

ENTITY
2013 2012
—E—= —F——fF
US$'000 us$'ooo
Group AEE SFESE FET
Unlisted investments, at cost REMIRE (FRAKA) - -
Share of net assets EEEEFE n 12
11 12
Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows: HEEFIEEE 2 B0 T -
Percentage of
EEED K
Particulars Place of
of issued incorporation/ Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares held registration interest power sharing  Principal activities
BEERT A
£8 R 215 at fi it B P RERE BNIE TEEK
CSC Consultancy Co., Ltd.  Registered capital People's Republic 50 50 50 Dormant
LR B AR R AT of RMB1,500,000 of China TEXK
&R I
AK#1,500,0007T
The investment in a jointly-controlled entity is indirectly held by R—RARZEFERBZRETIHARFRE
the Company. BEREE o
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17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 17. R—XLFEZEHERZRE &)

ENTITY (continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TREGAEERFAEGER 2 PEER
information of the Group's jointly-controlled entity: BME :
2013 2012
—E-—=F —T——F
us$‘o00 Us$'000
Group AEH FTER FEr
Share of the jointly-controlled entity's assets ~ JE{G L RIIZHIE 42~ &
and liabilities: KREfE :
Current assets mENEE 16 16
Non-current assets ERBEE 1 1
Current liabilities mEafE (6) (5)
Net assets BEZE " 12
Share of the jointly-controlled entity's results: FE{h LRI HI B 62~ 245 -
Operating expenses LERE (1) (1)
Loss after tax BrifigE 1R (1) (1)
18. DEFERRED TAX 18. IEFEFIIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during the year FRELEHBEE (EE) 2880 T :
are as follows:
Deferred tax assets ELEREEE
Decelerated Decelerated

tax depreciation tax depreciation

allowances allowances

R B I8 BIRTIE

mERE TERE

2013 2012

—EgE—= —E——F

US$'000 Us$'000

Group REE eI FET

At beginning of year REA] (115) (1)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the income FERNRWERTHB

statement during the year (Gt N) ZIEERIIE
(Note 9) GED)) 94 )
Gross deferred tax assets at end of year MNER ZIRIETR B A EAE (21) (115)
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18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

18. IELERIE (&)
EEBRIEES RS

Accelerated

tax depreciation

Accelerated

tax depreciation

allowances allowances

DR i 18 INZRTH I8

mERE ERE

2013 2012

—EF—= =ag==rF

US$'000 Us$'000

Group rEH FERT FET
Gross deferred tax liabilities at beginning and NEY N ER 7 IELEFIB

at end of year BEmBE 2 2

RATEZY - ETELEHEEERBED
FERIFSAR R AP 5136 o LA T T34 BE 75 28 3
B #(E R 2 BB IAGE AT -

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the

Group for financial reporting purposes:

2013 2012

—E—=5F —E—_F

us$‘ooo Us$'000

Group AEE SEEST FET

Deferred tax assets REFIRE E (21) (115)

Deferred tax liabilities R IBEE 2 2
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the REEU R RERZ

consolidated statement of financial position EER I & E/FE (19) (113)
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

19. EWE SR

RBEHR REBEZRFIZEZAHZ
BRIRDOMTIAE -

2013 2012

—E-= —T——F

US$'000 Us$'000

Group REH FEx FETT
Within 30 days 30 KA 3,769 4,207
31 to 60 days 31260k 1,006 785
61 to 90 days 61290k 481 265
91 to 365 days 91%2365K 21 227
Over 1 year HiEm1F 456 545
5,923 6,029

Impairment R (467) (662)
5,456 5,367

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally 60 to 90 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivables balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amount of the trade receivables approximates to its
fair value.

AEBEEFZBEGBEAETZUEEL N
BT ERRP—REWERIEMNRIEA -
FEEH—RAE0Z20KX - BEEFHAER
SEERE - ANEBEBE E KRR D 2 E
W SR TE 4 B AR IR ) - SRR A E B BT B
M UREREEERR shEEET
MR mER I 58 - AEEFEEW
BORRE/RTERGEEWERRIERE
HEfibmoafs B - BUWE ZERRTI T
FE - EREZGEAZEEERELATFE
% -

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables JEWE 5 RN 2 M EREE T
are as follows:

2013 2012
—E2—= —E——4F
US$'000 Us$'000
Group REE SEESTT FET
At beginning of year REFA) 662 815
Impairment losses recognised (Note 6) EHERREEE (Miie) 19 123
Amount written off as uncollectible MisE AR (e 2 FRI8 (221) (258)
Exchange differences e =8 7 (18)
At end of year REFK 467 662
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19. EWE Z R (5

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
carrying amount before provision of US$467,000 (2012:
US$662,000) relate to customers that were in financial difficulties
or were in default of payments and the receivables are not
expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered
to be impaired is as follows:

B % Bl BR T A2 B A467,0005 0 (T — =
F 1 662,000%7T) FEBIREE 2 B KR
TEEBM NS EEEENBZRER
B ZERWERRFESH AU -

R AERE 2 IR 58 2 R 47
m

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

US$'000 US$'000

Group AEE FEx FET
Neither past due nor impaired 3 % 26 BASIOR (B 3,332 2,627
Less than 3 months past due BHD =& B 2,109 2,645
3 to 6 months past due BHA=Z X {E A 11 64
Over 6 months past due B HAEE 8 7 {E A 4 31
5,456 5,367

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20.

21.

AMNRIE - REREAERFIR

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F —T—_—F ZE-—= —FE——F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTER FET FEx FET
Prepayments T IR 2,183 1,220 21 10
Deposits Bme 366 495 - -
Other receivables H (i fE W FRIE 1,179 1,405 - -
3,728 3,120 21 10

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.

A LB EYWEERSRME - 7F A Ll &%
2% B E Y T B R B RC 8k 2 IR
BHE -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK 21. B2 RBRELZEEHEAREBITER
DEPOSIT
Group Company
rEHE VNN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EBE—=F —ZF—= == —E——4F
us$'oo0 US$'000 uUSs$'000 US$'000
FEx FET FEx FET
Cash and bank balances IRE NRIRITAES 24,335 19,813 134 90
Less: Bank deposit with initial W MiaTE R AR = (E
term of over three months A2 R1TEK - 1,997 = -
Cash and cash equivalents Be MBS EFEIEER 24,335 17,816 134 90

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB") amounted to
approximately US$1,954,000 (2012: US$4,513,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under the
People's Republic of China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

RI|EHR > REBUAARE ([ARE])
B2 IR & MERTT 4588 491,954,000 7T (=
T — 4 : 4513000 7T) ° A R EE R Al
ERERAEMER - Al RIEFEHZ
INEESEIEDINGERE  SERNESER
F - ASERBBEREETING FiRZE
BZIRITHEARBEBEHMERK -

ROTFRRBARTEZRNEFEZES
MEEFE - BEMERERZEHRHH—B
EZAANE  RIEAKEZABREHE
EME BWEEMERER M EREGFE -
RITERDEFRRNBLRENOCE 2 EE
RIFERTT -
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22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. BHEZERX
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBERR BENESFERREZERAHZ
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BREROITIAT -

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

US$'000 Us$'000

Group REE T8 FET

Within 30 days 30K AN 3,363 3,416

31 to 60 days 31E60K 1,890 2,026

61 to 90 days 61290k 117 227

91 to 365 days 912365K 91 260

Over 1 year HBEE 65 68

5,526 5,997

ZERMNE SRR S - AL —KRiZ60
RERBE -

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 60-day terms.

23. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. BrtERAREMENRE

Group Company
REH VNN

2013 2012 2013 2012
—_E—= —EBE——F ZZE—= —E——4F
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'ooo Us$'000
SEESTE TFET SFESE F=E7T
Accrued expenses fE=tE 3,014 2,357 129 46
Other payables H fth e SR 7,474 6,217 - -
10,488 8,574 129 46

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an

of two months.

118 ‘ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2013

average term

HENRBESTEE - FHHRSME

A o



24, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

24, EERKEF

Group REHE

2013 2012
—_—F = — = —

—_—= — —= -

Note US$'000 US$'000
B EE FTEx TR

Defined benefit plan RN (a) 777 840

Other long term post-employment benefits b K Hi{E 8 R (K 1g 7] (b) 276 230
1,053 1,070

Notes: BdEE -

(a)  Defined benefit plan (a) EHEEFFE

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its qualifying
employees in Taiwan. Under the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits at 3% of final salary on attainment of a retirement age of 55.

According to the laws and regulations in Taiwan, the Group is obliged
to pay its employees in Taiwan, upon retirement, disability or death,
post-employment benefits based on the number of years of services and final
average salary. The Group carried out an actuarial valuation as at 30 April
2013 of its obligation for post-employment benefits payable to its employees
in Taiwan.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out at 30 April 2013 and 2012 by Hsu
Mao-Chin Actuary, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

R LTE RRAE A
F

AEBSEMAEARERGERER
PRI FHR AT A=

2l - BIRZETE - EE/ESS
SRR E S 302 RINEF]

BESEERRER  AEEAREREREEX
NERK  BRIKEHAEAZBH  LIREA
B B R FH R &K FHFHEATRRBA o
AEER_T-—=FMNA=THARBERERI
BMEEET RZBEMAE -

REBNAERBZROLMEERE  DR=F
—=FER-E-_FOA=THHARXREES
BRI B A E R E A ERET -

RNMEHRRKA 2 EREERRMOT

2013 2012

—E—=F —T—=F

% %

Discount rate YrIg % 1.50 1.75
Expected rate of return on plan assets sHEIEE Z FEH O 3R = 1.75 2.00

Expected rate of return on reimbursement right B4 2 Ta o) 3R K N/A FRiE A N/A i
Expected rate of salary increases TEHF e RE 2.00 2.00

Future pension increases RRBRSIERE N/A F3E A N/A i F
The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on FEIEEZ EEBHBREDBBENREHRE
the market expectations prevailing as at the end of the reporting period, HEARETECHEzTHSERKIMERE -

applicable to the period over which the obligations are to be settled.
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24, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 24. EEEAKRER @)
Notes: (continued) i - (48)
(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EFEEATE (&)

KRG A WERER 2T 8IRERMT

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement in
respect of the plan are as follows:

2013 2012

—E-=5F —T-—F

US$'000 Us$'000

FEx F=7

Current service cost A IR EL A 36 19
Interest cost FBRLA 17 16
Expected return on plan assets FTEI & E 2 TaHA B R (4) (3)
Actuarial gains BE W - 3)
Net benefit expenses 1@ A 2R EE 49 29

The Group expects to contribute US$27,000 to its defined benefit plan in AEEEPR =T —NFZREBAAEERE
2014. 27,000 7T ©

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as

REBMEEZREZIHMT

follows:

2013 2012
—E—= —2——fF
US$'000 US$'000
FEr FEx
At beginning of year REF] 998 968
Current service cost A RIEK AN 36 19
Interest cost F B A 17 16
Actuarial (gains)/loss on obligation EEZEE (W) /B8 (21) 80
Benefits paid =ENET] (143) (69)
Exchange difference R (12) (16)
At end of year RELR 875 998

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: SEIEEZ AT ELZESHIT ¢
2013 2012
—E-= —T——F
US$'000 US$'000
FER FET
At beginning of year REL] 214 211
Actual return IR EIHR 2 2
Contributions by the Group 7N £ [E\ {H 3R 102 74
Benefits paid BEAER (143) (69)
Exchange difference 5 = (3) (4)
At end of year RER 172 214

120 ‘ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2013



24, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

(b)

24. EEEKERN &)

BaE - ()

Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EEENE (8)
A reconciliation of the fair value of the plan assets and the present value FEIEERATERAEREMNEERBEERGS Y
of the defined benefit obligations to the net value of assets and liabilities BRAKRERZEERABEFE2HEREOT
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——F
Us$'o00 Us$'000
FErx FET
Fair value of plan assets STEIEECATE (172) (214)
Present value of defined benefit obligations AERANETZEE 875 998
703 784
Unrecognised net actuarial gains AERBE W FE 74 56
Net liabilities arising from defined benefit obligations AERNEETELEZ BBEFE 777 840
The defined benefit contributions in Taiwan are made to a fund administered REE 2 RERFERTIA—REAEBBAERE
by the government of Taiwan. The major categories of plan assets as ZEGEL - SrEIEEXZHh T REEE
a percentage of the fair value of the total plan assets of the centrally A EEEREATEZADLNAT ¢
administered fund are as follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F —T—=F
% %
Equity instruments RAT A 48 51
Debt instruments BT A 36 36
Deposits T 13 13
Others Hih 3 =
A five-year summary of the present value of the defined benefit obligations, ATRANEERE  FEEEQATE - sHEIEA
the fair value of the plan assets, the deficit in the plan and the experience Mt BB KRAE L AFHENT :
adjustment arising on plan liabilities are as follows:
2013 2012 201 2010 2009

=F-=f —F - T % T TF —TETNF

US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 us$'oo00 Us$'000

FEx F=T F=T FE =

Present value of defined benefit obligations ~ FERFIE T E 875 998 968 965 743

Fair value of plan assets FEIEEATE (172) (214) (211) (148) (112)

Unrecognised actuarial gains AERIBEE WS 74 56 143 58 151

Deficit in the plan FTEIEAL 777 840 900 875 782

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities FrEIBE &R - = = = -
Other long term post-employment benefits (b) HitRHESRIKEF

The balance represents provision for long service payment as required by
certain jurisdictions. Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.

BRTDIES T RUEREMERZ HRARE S 2
B o RUIEBAINME 8 EIERRKE H8 - e
BB B FERE B BN % S AR Al 4% LE B A B 2R
i
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. R
Shares % 12
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
US$'000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Authorised: YETE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000 /% =A% 1B
US$0.02 each 0.02Z T2 LM% 40,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
683,069,279 (2012: 683,069,279) 683,069,279 (—ZF——4F :
ordinary shares of US$0.02 each 683,069,279) IR F R mE &
0.023E 7T 2 LA 13,661 13,661

26.

Share options
Details of the Company's share option schemes are included in
Note 26 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme (“2002 Share Option Scheme") was
adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution of the then
sole shareholder passed on 22 April 2002 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group. The Company
terminated the 2002 Share Option Scheme and adopted a new
share option scheme (“2011 Share Option Scheme") pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company on 29 August 2011. The 2011 Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to 2021. Under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Board or a committee thereof
may grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price per share of at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of a share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the offer of the
relevant option; and (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer,
provided that the exercise price shall in no event be less than
the nominal amount of one share. Written acceptance is required
on acceptance of the grant of options. The maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme to be adopted by the Company from time to time
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of the
Company in issue from time to time. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the share options in
cash.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

26. BRETTE @)

The movements in share options under the 2002 Share Option NTARERAZSZ_FEREFE T 2B
Scheme during the year were as follows: AR e
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
hnEEFg hntEF 1
TEE BREHE TRE BREHA
HK$ per share '000 HK$ per share '000
BRET T BRRETT 5
At beginning of year REY] 0.803 17,300 0.801 17,675
Lapsed during the year RERE KK 0.700 (100) 0.700 (375)
At end of year RE LR 0.803 17,200 0.803 17,300

Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period have

ATARBERRERITERBREZITE

the following exercise periods and exercise prices: B ATIE(E -
2013 —E—=5F
Number of
options Exercise price* per share Exercise period
BRERE BRITEE  TEHS
'000 HK$
T4 BT
13,666 0.830 24 August 2008 to 23 August 2013
—EREN\FN A+ HEBE=2-—Z=ZN\A=+=H
3,534 0.700 25 August 2010 to 24 August 2015
“E-ZEHEN\AC-THEBE=ZE-AFNAZ=+TEAH
17,200

HEEEERAT —T—=F4% | 123



Notes to the Financial Statements
RS M T

30 April 2013

—E—=FWA=1+H

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

26. EIRRESTE ()

2012 —E—_F
Number of
options Exercise price® per share Exercise period
Bl ERE BRITEE  1TEH
'000 HK$
T BT
13,666 0.830 24 August 2008 to 23 August 2013
—EEN\FENAtHBEE=Z—=F/\A=+=H
3,634 0.700 25 August 2010 to 24 August 2015

2 EZFENAZ+RABE-ZE—AF/\A=+MA

17,300

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share
capital.

No share option was granted during the year (2012: Nil).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes
valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

- i AS A B BCAS R A 1 P sl B A TAT B s L (b AR U2
B - B TEER(FERERE

FRAYEREBRE (T ——F &) -

ERBABESN 2 BREZ R FETIE
AN — SFRAEERXN R L A #HE
et - AR R & F AR 2 R IR
o TRIVNMERZEARFH@AIRE

24 August 25 August

Date of grant 2007 2009
= A A = s 25

REHBH NA=+WM™BE NA=+EHH
Share price at date of grant (HK$ per share) RIREBEZKE (BB L) 0.83 0.70
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) IREFHRE (FREIT) 1.00 0.25
Expected volatility (%) T8 B B2 1 (90) 37.97 165.11
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 3 B F) 2 (00) 4.16 1.55
Expected life of options (year) BENSHE 2 FEET HARR (4F) 3.5 to 4.5 3.5t0 4.5
Dividend yield (%) % B3R (o)) 4.32 8.89

124 ‘ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2013



26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

27.

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 17,200,000
(2012: 17,300,000) share options outstanding under the 2002
Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 17,200,000 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital of US$344,000 (2012:
US$346,000) and share premium of approximately US$1,432,000
(2012: US$1,439,000) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 16,700,000 (2012: 17,300,000) share options outstanding
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 2.4% (2012: 2.5%) of the Company's shares in issue
as at that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 58 of
the financial statements.

26.

27.

B ESTE ()

IR TR R RE=ZE IS
BEHE AURRALEEZITER
o EHIE R TR - BRI
EARRBE IS - RURREELER -

B i R 2
ZitH

EEMERARTFE

RB|EMR NRRARAIAREBE_ZZT_F
B AR RE AT B4R 1 1M R 1T 2 B AR e At
17,200,000f7 (=& —=4F : 17,300,00013) °
MR T 2 EREERHRTE - AIREBEARR
AIRITZEARE T% H‘VA B ATEINET
17,200,0008% 28 A AR - mARA KR H
(B IND %‘Jijju344ooo%7t (Z—=%F:
346,0003 7T ) K #91,432,000%€ T (— & ——
F 11,439,000 7T) CRINBREETTER) ©

RALERTEHREXBE  ARABREBE-Z
T _FBEEEREmMERITEZER
# /$16,700,00013 (==& — = : 17,300,000
7)) AEZARRA TR B B BITIRD 2 #492.4%
—FE——4F :250) o

R

(a) A*KH
REBRAFEERBEFE 2 FES
HMEHEEFH2F R EHRKRFEBEZ
ReEEmEEE -
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27. RESERVES (continued) 27. ﬁﬁ(%)

(b) Company (b) AT
Share Capital
Share option  redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus® earnings Total
BRE EXEE X
fip 1 i ERRH REEAN &3
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'ooo
iz TEn TR TEn TEn TR TEn
Balance at 1 May 2011 W-E——FRA—B&H 22,71 23 48 9946 6,290 39,218
Total comprehensive income FERERA
for the year pat] - - - - 70 70
Equity-settled share option IARAE S, i 2 BB B
arrangements T - 1 - - - 1
Share options lapsed during ERNKUZ
the year Bl - (8) = = 8 -
Interim 2012 dividend paid BRNZZ——448ks 1© - - - - (773) (773)
At 30 April 2012 R-E-—&mA=1A 22,71 226 48 9,946 5595 38,526
Balance at 1 May 2012 W_E——FR A& 2,71 226 48 9,946 5595 38,526
Total comprehensive income FEZARA
for the year ik - - - = 524 524
Equity-settied share option IR 7 1 2 B P
arrangements 3 - 2 - - - 2
Share options lapsed during ERKHZ
the year B - (2) - - 2 =
Final 2012 dividend paid ER-Z——EREKRE 1 - - - - (439) (439)
Interim 2013 dividend paid BRZE—=448ks n - - - - (1,405) (1,405)
At 30 April 2013 RZE-=ZEMA=1H 22,711 226 48 9,946 4,277 37,208
Representing: i
Final 2013 dividend proposed R —Z—=FRHKR S 12 - - - - 1,054 1,054
Others Hit 22,711 226 48 9,946 3,223 36,154
22,1 226 48 9,946 4,277 37,208
’ The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the 0 RNl 2 BARBIERBEEHEME 2B AR

Bt 2 A FEBEAR B AR 75 M EAT
ZBROEEER - REBFE—N/N\—FAF
% ARRZEHBRIKE ATED K TRERA
A ° AW ARBE T IERTEE IR
SRUEEFSBABRTIELDIK : ()RR EEAS
Iz BfE  HNEBEZFEREBEINER
BEREBETRANARB R E R 2 #5E -

fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the Company's shares issued
in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
contributed surplus account of the Company is distributable to equity
holders. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would
after the payment be unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
or (i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.
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28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/DISSOLUTION OF 28. HEMEBAR M@ —RHELQF
A SUBSIDIARY

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (a) HEKEBLT
2012
—FT——fF
Note US$'000
Fd5E FET
Net assets disposed of: BEHECEEFE -
Other receivables o FEUCRIE 3
Other payables o Ath FE T 5RIE (3)
Exchange reserve realised b H B EIR 1
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries I EHT B ARz e 6 191
192
Satisfied by: ATHN A
Cash ok 192
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HHENBEARIEECRERREE
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: BERZRAFEINAT
2012
—E——F
US$'000
FET
Cash consideration and net inflow of BHeRENMNEHENB AR
cash and cash equivalents in respect BHZReRIREEEIEAR
of the disposal of subsidiaries ZmAEER 192
(b) Dissolution of a subsidiary (b) BE—RHEBQTE
2012
—E——F
Note US$'000
Bt =E FET
Net assets dissolved ERE BEFE =
Exchange reserve realised FE o IR 97
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary FRE— KB AR ZEE 6 (97)
Net inflow of cash and cash R B — KPR A
equivalents in respect of the ZHReRREEFEER
dissolution of a subsidiary 2N ERE =
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29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

29. HAREE

RBEMR - R BRRARAKBEE 2K
RAFEWOT :

Group Company
EE ARATH
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_—F =ZB-Z=F —ET—_F
Us$'000 Us$'o00 US$'000 Us$'000

Fxr TET FEr TET

Guarantees given to banks in
connection with facilities

granted to:

Subsidiaries

RETUTERTZ
BE M AIRTTEL
ZHER
B A E

= = 20,283 32,853

As at 30 April 2013, the banking facilities granted to the
subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks by
the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately
US$7,110,000 (2012: US$5,906,000).

30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office premises, staff quarters,
furniture and equipment under operating lease arrangements. The
leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

At 30 April 2013, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

30.

R-ZE—=FmWA=+1 BREXQAMH
BITEHZERME TH B QR ZE1TH
BB EN A #97,110,000%€ T (ZT——%F :
5,906,0003 7T ) °

REHERH
AEBERBLEERERFMBEES THA
EHEU - -BIRES G REE - ZFH
EZ7HEH PEEEZEHERRBOENZ
BTME -

RZZE—Z=ZFWMA=+H A&EERET
ARG ERERN TR BB 2 R%E

follows: HEBESHIBMAT :
Office premises Furniture and
and staff quarters equipment
MAEBNREIRES BMRRE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E——F ZE-—= —E——4F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Group rEE FEx FETT TE7x FE7T
Within one year —FR 1,899 1,863 103 125
In the second to fifth years, FE_FZFRF
inclusive (BHEERME) 855 1,848 194 279
2,754 3,711 297 404

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no operating

lease arrangements.
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31. COMMITMENTS 31. &I

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in Note Br | SCHTsE30FT il 2 45 & A0 EFEIEIN - LA
30 above, the Group had the following capital commitments for TREASERBENREBENE KE
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment at the end of the R BAAEE -

reporting period:

2013 2012
—E-—=F —F——fF
US$'000 US$'000
Group REE SFEZ FE7T
Contracted, but not provided for BRI B R 114 25
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any REEHAR - AA R E (] & A RIE o
capital commitments.
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. EREALERS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these @ BAFBDmERHEMIBOMAL LRSS
financial statements, the Group had the following significant N REBEFERNEEG B@EATHETIA
transactions with related parties during the year: TEARS :
Group
£EE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F
Name of related parties Nature of transactions Note Us$'ooo Us$'000
ERAEALTERE REME iz FEx FET
Sky Fame Group Limited Rental expense (i) 308 308
REEEERAA HERX
Wellbuild International Limited Rental expense (ii) 509 42
ZEERERAF HERX
Notes: Mz -
(i) Sky Fame Group Limited (“Sky Fame") is 100% owned by Mr. WANG (i) HESEERAR ([HE]) BEXRBLEE (B
Lu Yen, an executive Director, and his spouse. The rental expense was T8F) RERB2ERS - BEAXIZ2ED
determined based on the market rate and floor area. BEHeREEEEERE
(i) Wellbuild International Limited (“Wellbuild", together with its () EZBEREERAR ([BF] 2RENMBRRLH
subsidiaries, the "Wellbuild Group") is 100% owned by Roly W BEEE]) AR AHERRR 2B E
International Holdings Ltd., which is a controlling shareholder of the RERABZEHRE - HeRAX N2 EmMEES
Company. The rental expense was determined based on the market RAZEEREE

rate and floor area.
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Commitments with related parties

(1)

Linmark (HK) Limited entered into a tenancy agreement
with Sky Fame whereby Sky Fame agreed to lease to
Linmark (HK) Limited a residential apartment for a
term of 24 months commencing on 1 May 2011 at a
monthly rent of approximately US$26,000 (equivalent
to HK$200,000).

The tenancy agreement was renewed on 12 April 2013
for a term of 24 months commencing on 1 May 2013
with the same rent as the previous agreement. The
Group expects the total rent payable to Sky Fame for the
two years ending 2015 to be approximately US$308,000
(equivalent to HK$2,400,000) respectively.

Tamarind International Limited (together with its
subsidiaries, the "Tamarind Group") entered into a
master lease agreement with Wellbuild whereby
Wellbuild Group has agreed to lease to Tamarind Group
certain portion of a commercial building in Shanghai,
PRC for a term of 3 years commencing on 1 April
2012 at a monthly rent of approximately US$42,000
(equivalent to HK$330,000). The Group expects the
annual rent payable to Wellbuild for the two years
ending 30 April 2015 to be approximately US$509,000
(equivalent to HK$3,960,000) and US$462,000
(equivalent to HK$3,630,000), respectively.
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32. BBEEALIRS &)
g5 RRiE A+ 2 A

(b)

(1)

(ii)

ME(BEA) BRARIEAES
VHEWHE BHEBERER
WHE (BB BRAREA—F
FERE BH-_ZT——FHA
—HEBFAE4ER FAHESE

#4726,0003 J© (48 55 7200,000/%
JT) °

HEwEER T —=FN A+
- EZEZEHE Q T—=%HA

— B AH4EA - S EL
AT Z BheetER o NERIELN =
%fBiEiWIEFFﬁHEH%%Z
e L8515 9 5l £9308,0003 T
($Hﬁﬁéz,4oo,oooﬁ§n)

Tamarind International Limited (&
BEMBARAEA I XRELAE
B HEEZIIVAHEERE
BhEZEEEERERRSTSE
ME—EARPE B8 2EEXR
E BB, - BT — 4
A—BR:irAH=F A8
#942,0003% 7t (48 5 74330,00078
TL) e ASBEEMEE-T 1
FOA=THIEMEFEEN
ZiZ 2 FEM 25 5 4509,000
3 7T (#8 25 143,960,000/ 7T) &
462,000% 7T (48 55 743,630,000/
JT) °



32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Balances with a related party

() At 30 April 2013, the Group had prepaid rent and
rental deposit of US$24,000 (2012: US$24,000) to a
related company;

(i)  Details of the Group's balance with a jointly-
controlled entity as at the end of the reporting period
is disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

(o)

(d)

32. BEEALIRE

EHRREA L Z AR

() M-ZZT—=FMA=+H &&
EEEN—XREMEQARZEN
e KRS % £24000% 7T (=
T — —4F : 24,00057T)

(i) MAIMEHR  AEEE—KEF
PR B e v BRI SRR
BsF1748 8 -

REBMEIETBABZHH

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

us$'ooo US$'000

TEx FET

Short term employee benefits SEEL=EER 1,977 1,198

Post-employment benefits 1 BRINEF

- defined contribution plans — EREHNRGTE 70 49

Equity-settled share option expense VARG #E 2 19 2 BE IR BE 28 R 1 4
Total compensation paid to IRFEEEEAE

key management personnel ) ek 2,048 1,251

Further details of Directors’ emoluments are included in
Note 7 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of item (a)(i) and
(a)(ii) above also constitute continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EXZHM A BER M BHRRMET -

X5 () (i) 8 K 5B (a) (i) T HY A B E A
TR G INEK ET AR R E1AZE TR
EZIFBRERS -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. SR T EEH
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial SHAIERMTARRSHRZEEBERT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Group REE
Financial assets cREE
Loans and Available-for-sale
receivables financial asset Total
ERRERHE THEELRNEE At
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE-zZf —"T-——F ZB-=f ~“ZT-—F —E-Zf ~“T-——F
Note US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
i TER S TER FET FER TET
Available-for-sale financial asset ~ AI{EHESRMEE 15 - - 84 84 84 84
Trade receivables JEWE AR 19 5,456 5,367 - - 5,456 5,367
Financial assets included in STABMAFE - e
prepayments, deposits REMEKFHIE
and other receivables LEREE 20 1,545 1,900 - - 1,545 1,900
Bank deposit with initial term of  #JiaTE R ERE =18 A
over three months ZHAER 2 = 1997 = = = 1997
Cash and cash equivalents BeReSEER 2 24,335 17,816 - - 24,335 17,816
31,336 27,080 84 84 31,420 27,164
Financial liabilities TRBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
REBERAIIRZERMEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Note Uus$'oo0 US$'000
BtEE TER FET
Trade payables JENE SRR 22 5,526 5997
Financial liabilities included in T AFERH B A K E A RS
accruals and other payables HEZSBEE 23 7,474 6,217
13,000 12,214
Company ¥ NN
Financial assets eREE
Loans and receivables
ERREWRE
2013 2012
—EBE—=f —E——F
Note US$'000 US$'000
ks TER FET
Cash and cash equivalents B RBELSEEER 21 134 90
As at the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have RMERR - ARAR W EEACREE -

any financial liability.
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

34. DHERAFEER
FEBRAAFASBRIAZEEERAF

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's and the

Company's financial instruments are as follows: BT :
Group rEH
Financial assets cTREE
Carrying amounts Fair value
BREE AVE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F —E-=F —E-—fF
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TER FET TEx FET
Available-for-sale financial asset ~ AJft &L RV EE 84 84 84 84
Trade receivables FEWE 5 /R 5,456 5,367 5,456 5,367
Financial assets included in STATERFRIA
prepayments deposits and B REMER
other receivables DNESREE 1,545 1,900 1,545 1,900
Bank deposit with initial term of  ¥JHATE R ERA =1E A
over three months ZIRITIFER - 1,997 = 1,997
Cash and cash equivalents HeNEHeEEEE 24,335 17,816 24,335 17,816
31,420 27,164 31,420 27,164
Financial liabilities THeE
Carrying amounts Fair value
BREE ARE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E—-F —E—=F —T—-F
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'o00 Us$'000
TER FET TEx FET
Trade payables FERT B SRR 5,526 5,997 5,526 5,997
Financial liabilities included in STAESERNEM
accruals and other payables ENZIEzSREE 7,474 6,217 7,474 6,217
13,000 12,214 13,000 12,214
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued) ~ 34.

AFERAFEEBHR @)

Company A H
Financial assets TREE
Carrying amounts Fair value
BRTE (B DNEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=fF —E—_F —E—=fF —E——fF
US$'000 us$'o00 US$'000 Us$'000
Fxx TET Fxx TET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeFBEIER 134 90 134 90

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have
any financial liability.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sales.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair value of bank deposit with initial term of over three
months, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, financial liabilities included in accruals and other
payables, approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the
available-for-sale financial asset is determined with reference to
the price quoted by the relevant club.

Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1:  fair value measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2:  fair value measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3:  fair value measured based on valuation techniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs)
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34.

35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)  34. DFERAFEREHK 50
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEER (5
Assets measured at fair values: BAFEAECEE
Group NEE
As at 30 April 2013 R-ZZE—=FWA=+H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BB BB E=E &t
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'o00 US$'000
FEx FEx FEx FEx
Available-for-sale financial asset At EELREE 84 - - 84
As at 30 April 2012 R-ZE——FmA=1+H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
i F_E F=E BEr
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FETT FETT FET F=ET
Available-for-sale financial asset A[ftHE S FIEE 84 = = 84
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRNF-EEEF_E2HETEQNFER
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level ECEE . TEERIIEREE=E (=
3 (2012: Nil). T—_F )
The Company did not have any financial assets and financial RZE—=FR=_FT—Z-FMHA=+H"
liabilities measured at fair value as at 30 April 2013 and 2012. RAFWEEAIRAFEFECEREE
LEREE-
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. ¥ EKREEEEREE

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. It is, and
has been throughout the year under review, the Group's policy
that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.
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30 April 2013

—E—=FWA=1+H

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. MBEMEEBEREE &)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's short term interest-bearing
bank deposits with a floating interest rate.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risks.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax and the Group's equity.

B
REBEEARZH TS EEFEESHR
SEMEBF GG SRITFHRER -

74 45 B0 30 4 3T ST 1F (2 ) SR 4 50 5 40 B 4
FIZER -

TERAUPEFARMEBRETROER
T+ A OB BT TR A L B 2

HHF R G IR Al e B EY O GURKNE o

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

Increase/ in profit in profit

(decrease) in before tax before tax

basis points and equity and equity

HE BRENEIRER BN kiEz

#hn, CGRd) #whn GR) Gl

US$'000 US$'000

Group AEH FEx FET
United States dollar =TT 50 122 99
United States dollar ETT (50) (122) (99)

Foreign currency risk

The Company's functional currency is the United States dollar
and the functional currencies of majority of the subsidiaries
are the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. The Group's
transactions, trade receivables and trade payables are mainly
denominated in these two currencies.

As the exchange rate of the United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar is pegged, management considers the foreign exchange
risk in this respect is not significant. The Group has certain
investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. However, as the net foreign
exchange exposure of the foreign operations is not significant, the
Group does not actively hedge this foreign exchange exposure.

The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and liabilities held
in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar to ensure that net exposure is kept at an acceptable level,
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. BiEMEE B ERBE ®)
AND POLICIES (continued) _
Foreign currency risk (continued) ?l‘ﬁﬁgll“ﬁ(%’) N i
Certain monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB. ETE\\MQE&E\{EW\/\E%WE%;T%
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the 75%;%2%41&&%3@3?5 ' Efiﬁﬁmﬁjk%
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in RMB exchange %/E%T\%Z'E\/R—F ) %%égﬁg{gm
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit Q:H /%@J“ $;'Eiﬁwffmm wmMEAR
before tax due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and WERQEES 2 BURE -
liabilities.
2013 2012
—EBE—=F —E——4F
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit in profit
currency rate before tax before tax
SNEEE = BRBH A 2 A BR 1 Bl 7
R (TR 80 /CRL)  Ein CRd)
% Us$'000 US$'000
Group HEE TR FET
If United States dollar (DEST N
weakens against RMB 8218 5 98 223
If United States dollar (LEBIPN-=
strengthens against RMB FHE (5) (98) (223)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise a bank deposit with initial term of over three months,
cash and cash equivalents, an available-for-sale financial asset,
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by
geographical region and by industry sector. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group has certain concentration of credit
risk on the Group's trade receivables, as the amounts due from
the largest five debtors amounted to approximately US$2,196,000
(2012: US$2,930,000), representing 40.2% (2012: 54.6%) of the
Group's trade receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management continuously monitors the level of exposure to
ensure that follow-up actions are taken promptly to reduce the
risk exposure or to recover overdue balances. The Group will also
continuously exploit new opportunities and forge relationships
with new customers with the aim of broadening its clientele.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 19
to the financial statements.

EERE
AEBREEZRAREERINE=
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B TS HRaR P =
30 April 2013
—E—=FWA="1H
35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. i EMREE B ERBER (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk REBESRAR
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity NEBNEERERSAMALRGTEE &
of funding and flexibility through the use of banking facilities. B EHERTE R 2 Mg FE -
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end BRI ETA IR ST oI H AN E B R
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted SHR 7oA RSB RMT -
payments, is as follows:
Within one year
—FR
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
us$'ooo US$'000
Group A& E FEx FET
Trade payables FEfS B S BRFK 5,526 5,997
Financial liabilities included in accruals and ST AMERTE R K EAM
other payables ENFIBEz /ARG 7,474 6,217
13,000 12,214

At 30 April 2013, the utilised banking facilities of US$7,110,000
(2012: US$5,906,000) granted to the subsidiaries subject to
guarantees given to the banks by the Company is repayable on
demand.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safequard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally impaired
capital requirement. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
30 April 2013 and 30 April 2012.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders'
equity.
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36.

37.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 13 June
2013, a special resolution was passed to approve the reduction
of US$12,800,000 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company and the transfer of the credit arising
therefrom to the contributed surplus account of the Company
("Share Premium Reduction”). The Share Premium Reduction
became effective on 14 June 2013 and the credit transferred to
the contributed surplus account of the Company was then applied
to pay the Distribution. Details of the Share Premium Reduction
and the Distribution are contained in the circular of the Company
dated 21 May 2013.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board on 12 July 2013.

36.

37.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFMBHE

RESULTS E
Year ended 30 April
BENA=1THILEE
2009 2010 201 2012 2013
—EENF T-TF _T——F _T-_F ZB-Z=F
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'o00 US$'000 Us$'000
FET TE1 FET FET FTEx
REVENUE Yz 195,762 93,526 95,763 100,621 110,047
Cost of sales SHE A (159,823) (67,200) (72,791) (77,123) (82,459)
Gross profit EF 35,939 26,326 22,972 23,498 27,588
Other income HAb A 1,846 2,472 1,362 1,399 1,023
General and administrative expenses  —#% R AT & (33,309) (25,647) (22,007) (22,014) (23,543)
Restructuring costs HAER (1,719) (1,362) (1,556) = =
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary ~ —ZKIIBAR)EEE 2 Wz - 5,255 - - -
Loss on deregistration of branches /A R HUA =1 2 E518 - (1,036) = = (193)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREER (3,000) - - - -
Impairment loss on patents and BN REERE
trademarks e (10,137) = - - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR 2 e 102 - 13 191 =
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary  EER—RIE R A ZEE - - - (97) =
Operating profit/(loss) TEER /(BR) (10,278) 6,008 784 2977 4,875
Interest income FEYA 149 53 5 55 55
Finance costs BB R (52) = = - -
Share of loss of a jointly-controlled {5 — R L RIIEHI T 82
entity 2B (4) (4) (2) ) (1)
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ATEHA (EE) (10,185) 6,057 787 3,031 4,929
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisRiige /(Ax) (2,069) (138) (142) (247) 403
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF (BB (12,254) 5919 645 2,784 5,332
Attributable to: VAR &7 1
Owners of the Company RRBEBA (8,350) 5919 645 2,784 5,332
Non-controlling interest R (3,904) = = - -
(12,254) 5919 645 2,784 5,332
Dividends f% 8 1,891 6,548 272 1,212 2,459
Earnings/(loss) per share (US cents) — BRR&F /(E8) (E1L)
Basic BN (1.2) 0.9 0.1 0.4 0.8
Diluted e N/A I3 A 0.9 0.1 0.4 0.8
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

At 30 April

REA=1H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“ETNF ZT-TF —T—% T -F ZB-=f
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FExT FET FEm
Non-current assets IERFEE 28,042 27,312 26,899 27,540 27,488
Current assets mBNEE 51,662 33,768 25,398 28,512 33,937
Total assets BERBE 79,704 61,080 52,297 56,052 61,425
Current liabilities mEaE (39,510) (18,701) (14,398) (16,039) (17,700)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,192) (1,254) (1,151) (1,070) (1,053)
Total liabilities BERR (40,702) (19,955) (15,549) (17,109) (18,753)
Net assets BEFE 39,002 41,125 36,748 38,943 42,672
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Executive Directors
WANG Lu Yen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
WONG Wai Ming

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Executive committee
WANG Lu Yen (Chairman of the Committee)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

Audit committee

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (Chairman of the Committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Remuneration committee

WANG Arthur Minshiang (Chairman of the Committee)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

WANG Lu Yen

Nomination committee

WANG Lu Yen (Chairman of the Committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Company secretary
CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda

Registered office
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Head office and principal place of business
1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre,
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Principal share registrar and transfer office
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Shareholder Information

R E R

Listing Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 10 May 2002
Stock Code : 915
Board Lot : 2,000
Par Value : US$0.02
Trading Currency © HK$
Financial calendar 2013
Financial year ended 30 April 2013
Full year results announced 12 July 2013

Register of members closed (for ascertaining
shareholders' rights to attend and
vote at annual general meeting)
Annual general meeting
Ex-dividend date for final dividend
Register of members closed
(for determining entitlement to final dividend)
Record date for final dividend
Despatch of dividend warrants
Interim results to be announced

22-26 August 2013
26 August 2013
28 August 2013

30 August - 3 September 2013
3 September 2013

on or about 9 September 2013
mid of December 2013*

*

subject to change

Final dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 1.20 HK cents per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 30 April 2013. Subject to shareholders' approval, the
final dividend will be paid in cash to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Tuesday, 3 September 2013.

Dividend warrants will be despatched to shareholders on or about Monday, 9 September
2013.

Closure of register of members for final dividend

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the final dividend in respect of the
year ended 30 April 2013, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 30 August 2013 to Tuesday, 3 September 2013, both days inclusive. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share
registrar of the Company, Tricor Standard Limited, not later than 4.30 p.m. on Thursday,
29 August 2013.

Closure of register of members for annual general
meeting

For the purpose of ascertaining the shareholders' rights of attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, 22 August 2013 to Monday, 26 August 2013, both days inclusive.
In order to be entitled to attend the annual general meeting, all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong
Kong branch share registrar of the Company, Tricor Standard Limited, not later than
4.30 p.m. on Wednesday, 21 August 2013.

Shareholder services
For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the Company's Hong
Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Standard Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,

28 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile: (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong branch share registrar
promptly of any change of addresses.

Investor relations

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

Linmark Group Limited

1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre,
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Telephone:  (852) 2753 7373

Facsimile: (852) 2721 6554

Email: ir@linmark.com
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Linmark Group Limited
HEEEERAF

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(REFEEMKLZBRAR)

1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Tel 5% ¢ (852) 2753 7373
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